This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion and amendment. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the Official Statement is delivered in final form.

Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy these securities nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would

be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. This Preliminary Official Statement is in a form deemed final as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b) (1), but is subject to revision, amendment

and completion in a Final Official Statement.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE 13, 2019

In the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
under existing law interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income and is not an item of tax preference for federal income tax purposes. See "TAX EXEMPTION"
herein for a more detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present
Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

The City will designate the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating
to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt
obligations.

New Issue Rating Application Made: S&P Global Ratings

CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
(Jefferson County)

$2,385,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS,
SERIES 2019B

BID OPENING: June 19,2019, 10:30 A M., C.T.
CONSIDERATION: Not later than 11:59 P.M., C.T. on June 19, 2019 (PARAMETERS RESOLUTION)

PURPOSE/AUTHORITY/SECURITY: The $2,385,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B (the "Bonds")
of'the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin (the "City") are being issued pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, for the public purposes
of financing street improvement projects; sewerage projects; water system projects; and community development projects in the City’s
Tax Incremental District No. 5. The Bonds are general obligations of the City, and all the taxable property in the City is subject to the
levy of a tax to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied without
limitation as to rate or amount. Delivery is subject to receipt of an approving legal opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin.

DATE OF BONDS: June 27, 2019

MATURITY: May 1 as follows:
Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*
2020 $95,000 2027 $140,000 2034 $105,000
2021 120,000 2028 140,000 2035 110,000
2022 125,000 2029 145,000 2036 115,000
2023 125,000 2030 100,000 2037 115,000
2024 135,000 2031 100,000 2038 120,000
2025 135,000 2032 100,000 2039 120,000
2026 135,000 2033 105,000

MATURITY * The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale,

ADJUSTMENTS: in increments of $5,000 each, up to a maximum of $65,000 per maturity. Increases or decreases may

be made in any maturity. If any principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be
adjusted to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000.

TERM BONDS: See "Term Bond Option" herein.

INTEREST: May 1, 2020 and semiannually thereafter.

OPTIONAL Bonds maturing on May 1, 2029 and thereafter are subject to call for prior optional redemption on May
REDEMPTION: 1, 2028 and any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

MINIMUM BID: $2,355,187.

MAXIMUM BID: $2,528,100.

GOOD FAITH A good faith deposit in the amount of $47,700 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire transfer of
DEPOSIT: funds.

PAYING AGENT: To be named by the Issuer.

BOND COUNSEL: Quarles & Brady LLP

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR: Ehlers and Associates, Inc.
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY: See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein (unless otherwise specified by the purchaser).

EXEHLERS

BUILDING COMMUNITIES. IT'S WHAT WE DO

nfo@enlers-inc.com 1 (800) 552-117 www.ehlers-inc.com



REPRESENTATIONS

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any representation other than
those contained in this Preliminary Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon
as having been authorized by the City. This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer
to buy any of the Bonds in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the Syndicate Manager or Syndicate Members. Statements
contained herein which involve estimates or matters of opinion are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of
fact. Ehlers and Associates, Inc. prepared this Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto relying on information of the City and
other sources for which there is reasonable basis for believing the information is accurate and complete. Bond Counsel has not participated
in the preparation of this Preliminary Official Statement and is not expressing any opinion as to the completeness or accuracy of the information
contained therein. Compensation of Ehlers and Associates, Inc., payable entirely by the City, is contingent upon the delivery of the Bonds.

COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15¢2-12

Certain municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule").

Preliminary Official Statement: This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the City for dissemination to potential investors.
Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding the Bonds to prospective underwriters in the interest of receiving competitive proposals
in accordance with the sale notice contained herein. Unless an addendum is posted prior to the sale, this Preliminary Official Statement shall
be deemed nearly final for purposes of the Rule subject to completion, revision and amendment in a Final Official Statement as defined below.

Review Period: This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to prospective bidders for review. Comments or requests for the
correction of omissions or inaccuracies must be submitted to Ehlers and Associates, Inc. at least two business days prior to the sale. Requests
for additional information or corrections in the Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this date will not be considered a
qualification ofa proposal received from an underwriter. Ifthere are any changes, corrections or additions to the Preliminary Official Statement,
interested bidders will be informed by an addendum prior to the sale.

Final Official Statement: Copies of the Final Official Statement will be delivered to the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) within seven
business days following the proposal acceptance.

Continuing Disclosure: Subject to certain exemptions, issues in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000 may be required to comply with
provisions of the Rule which require that underwriters obtain from the issuers of municipal securities (or other obligated party) an agreement
for the benefit of the owners of the securities to provide continuing disclosure with respect to those securities. This Preliminary Official
Statement describes the conditions under which the City is required to comply with the Rule.

CLOSING CERTIFICATES

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) will be furnished with the following items: (1) a certificate of the appropriate
officials to the effect that at the time of the sale of the Bonds and all times subsequent thereto up to and including the time of the delivery of
the Bonds, this Preliminary Official Statement did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (2) a receipt signed
by the appropriate officer evidencing payment for the Bonds; (3) a certificate evidencing the due execution of the Bonds, including statements
that (a) no litigation of any nature is pending, or to the knowledge of signers, threatened, restraining or enjoining the issuance and delivery of
the Bonds, (b) neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the City nor the title of the signers to their respective offices is being contested,
and (c) no authority or proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds have been repealed, revoked or rescinded; and (4) a certificate setting forth
facts and expectations of the City which indicates that the City does not expect to use the proceeds of the Bonds in a manner that would cause
them to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or within the meaning of
applicable Treasury Regulations.

il
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INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Preliminary Official Statement contains certain information regarding the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin (the "City") and
the issuance of its $2,385,000% General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B (the "Bonds"). The City Council
will adopt a resolution on June 18, 2019, (the “Parameters Resolution”) which authorizes the City Manager or
Treasurer/Finance Director to accept a bid for the Bonds if the parameters and conditions set forth in the Parameters
Resolution are satisfied. If the parameters and conditions set forth in the Parameters Resolution are not met through the
competitive bids received on June 19, 2019, neither the City Manager nor Treasurer/Finance Director will have the
authority to accept a bid for the Bonds, and all bids for the Bonds will be rejected.

Inquiries may be directed to Ehlers and Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers" or the "Municipal Advisor"), Waukesha, Wisconsin, (262) 785-
1520, the City's municipal advisor. A copy of this Preliminary Official Statement may be downloaded from Ehlers’ web site at
www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the Bond Sales link and following the directions at the top of the site.

THE BONDS

GENERAL

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form as to both principal and interest in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral
multiple thereof, and will be dated, as originally issued, as of June 27, 2019. The Bonds will mature on May 1 in the years and
amounts set forth on the cover of this Preliminary Official Statement. Interest will be payable on May 1 and November 1 of each
year, commencing May 1, 2020, to the registered owners of the Bonds appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of
business on the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the immediately preceding month. Interest will be computed upon
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board ("MSRB"). The rate for any maturity may not be more than 2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity.
(For example, if a rate of 4.50% is proposed for the 2025 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later
maturity is 2.50%.) All Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest from the date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate.
Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). (See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein.) As long as the Bonds are
held under the book-entry system, beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be acquired in book-entry form only, and all
payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made through the facilities of DTC and its
participants. If the book-entry system is terminated, principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable as
provided in the Parameters Resolution.

The City may select a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the "Paying Agent"). If an outside Paying Agent firm is
retained, the City will pay the charges for Paying Agent services. The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to
appoint a successor.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, the Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2029 shall be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity
on May 1, 2028 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment. If redemption is in part, the selection of the amounts
and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City. If only part of the Bonds having a common
maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify DTC of the particular amount of such
maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and
each participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

*Preliminary, subject to change.


http://www.ehlers-inc.com.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic transmission, overnight
delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for
redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books.

AUTHORITY; PURPOSE
The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, for the public purposes of financing street improvement
projects; sewerage projects; water system projects; and community development projects in the City’s Tax Incremental District

No. 5.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES*

Sources

Par Amount of Bonds $2,385,000

Estimated Interest Earnings 7,710

Total Sources $2,392,710
Uses

Total Underwriter's Discount $29,813

Costs of Issuance 49,050

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 2,313,000

Rounding Amount 848

Total Uses $2,392,710

*Preliminary, subject to change.
SECURITY

For the prompt payment of the Bonds with interest thereon and for the levy of taxes sufficient for this purpose, the full faith, credit
and resources of the City will be irrevocably pledged. The City will levy a direct, annual, irrepealable tax on all taxable property
in the City sufficient to pay the interest on the Bonds when it becomes due and also to pay and discharge the principal on the
Bonds at maturity, in compliance with Article XI, Section 3 of the Wisconsin Constitution. Such tax may, under current law, be
levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

CONCURRENT FINANCING

By means of a separate Preliminary Official Statement, the City will be issuing $6,160,,000 Sewerage System and Light and Water
Utility Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the "Concurrent Obligations™) on June 27, 2019.

RATING

General obligation debt of the City, with the exception of any outstanding credit enhanced issues, is currently rated "AA-" by
Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings (“S&P”).

The City has requested a rating on the Bonds from S&P, and bidders will be notified as to the assigned rating prior to the sale.
Such rating reflects only the views of such organization and explanations of the significance of such rating may be obtained from
S&P. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies
and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not
be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so
warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.



Such rating is not to be construed as a recommendation of the rating agency to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and the rating assigned
by the rating agency should be evaluated independently. Except as may be required by the Disclosure Undertaking described
under the heading "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" neither the City nor the underwriter undertake responsibility to bring to the
attention of the owner of the Bonds any proposed changes in or withdrawal of such rating or to oppose any such revision
or withdrawal.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist brokers, dealers, and municipal securities dealers, in connection with their participation in the
offering of the Bonds, to comply with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule"), the City shall agree to provide certain
information to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB") through its Electronic Municipal Market
Access ("EMMA") system, or any system that may be prescribed in the future. The Rule was last amended, effective
February 27, 2019, to include an expanded list of material events.

On the date of issue and delivery, the City shall execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, under which
the City will covenant for the benefit of holders including beneficial holders, to provide electronically, or in a manner
otherwise prescribed, certain financial information annually and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events
enumerated in the Rule (the "Disclosure Undertaking"). The details and terms of the Disclosure Undertaking for the
City are set forth in Appendix D. Such Disclosure Undertaking will be in substantially the form attached hereto.

A failure by the City to comply with any Disclosure Undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds.
However, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

In the previous five years, the City believes it has not failed to comply in all material respects with its prior
undertakings under the Rule. The City has reviewed its continuing disclosure responsibilities along with any changes
to the Rule, to ensure compliance. Ehlers is currently engaged as dissemination agent for the City.

LEGAL OPINION

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be furnished by
Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, and will be available at the time of delivery of the Bonds. The legal opinion
will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the City;
provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied
in either a legal or equitable proceeding).

STATEMENT REGARDING BOND COUNSEL PARTICIPATION

Bond Counsel has not assumed responsibility for this Preliminary Official Statement or participated in its preparation (except with
respect to the section entitled “TAX EXEMPTION" in the Preliminary Official Statement and the "FORM OF LEGAL OPINION"
found in Appendix B of the Preliminary Official Statement).

TAX EXEMPTION

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Bonds under existing law substantially in the following form:

"The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the owners
of'the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on
individuals. The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds



in order for interest on the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income
tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to
be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The City has agreed to comply
with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to the
condition that the City comply with those requirements. We express no opinion regarding other federal tax
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds."

The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax
consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income
tax consequences.

From time to time legislation is proposed, and there are or may be legislative proposals pending in the Congress of
the United States that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect
the market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether, or in what form, any proposal that could alter one or
more of the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of the Bonds may be
enacted. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed
federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation.

ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT

To the extent that the initial public offering price of certain of the Bonds is less than the principal amount payable at maturity, such
Bonds ("Discounted Bonds") will be considered to be issued with original issue discount. The original issue discount is the excess
of'the stated redemption price at maturity of a Discounted Bond over the initial offering price to the public, excluding underwriters
or other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of such Discounted Bonds were sold (issue price). With respect to
a taxpayer who purchases a Discounted Bond in the initial public offering at the issue price and who holds such Discounted Bond
to maturity, the full amount of original issue discount will constitute interest that is not includible in the gross income of the owner
of such Discounted Bond for federal income tax purposes and such owner will not, subject to the caveats and provisions herein
described, realize taxable capital gain upon payment of such Discounted Bond upon maturity.

Original issue discount is treated as compounding semiannually, at a rate determined by reference to the yield to maturity of each
individual Discounted Bond, on days that are determined by reference to the maturity date of such Discounted Bond. The amount
treated as original issue discount on a Discounted Bond for a particular semiannual accrual period is generally equal to (a) the
product of (i) the yield to maturity for such Discounted Bond (determined by compounding at the close of each accrual period)
and (ii) the amount that would have been the tax basis of such Discounted Bond at the beginning of the particular accrual period
if held by the original purchaser; and less (b) the amount of any interest payable for such Discounted Bond during the accrual
period. The tax basis is determined by adding to the initial public offering price on such Discounted Bond the sum of the amounts
that have been treated as original issue discount for such purposes during all prior periods. If a Discounted Bond is sold or
exchanged between semiannual compounding dates, original issue discount that would have been accrued for that semiannual
compounding period for federal income tax purposes is to be apportioned in equal amounts among the days in such compounding
period.

For federal income tax purposes, the amount of original issue discount that is treated as having accrued with respect to such
Discounted Bond is added to the cost basis of the owner in determining gain or loss upon disposition of a Discounted Bond
(including its sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity). Amounts received upon disposition of a Discounted Bond that
are attributable to accrued original issue discount will be treated as tax-exempt interest, rather than as taxable gain.

The accrual or receipt of original issue discount on the Discounted Bonds may result in certain collateral federal income tax
consequences for the owners of such Discounted Bonds. The extent of these collateral tax consequences will depend upon the
owner's particular tax status and other items of income or deduction.



The Code contains additional provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount. Owners who purchase Discounted
Bonds at a price other than the issue price or who purchase such Discounted Bonds in the secondary market should consult their
own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds. Under the applicable provisions
governing the determination of state and local taxes, accrued interest on the Discounted Bonds may be deemed to be received in
the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment until a later year. Owners of Discounted Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds.

BOND PREMIUM

To the extent that the initial offering price of certain of the Bonds is more than the principal amount payable at
maturity, such Bonds ("Premium Bonds") will be considered to have bond premium.

Any Premium Bond purchased in the initial offering at the issue price will have "amortizable premium" within the
meaning of Section 171 of the Code. The amortizable premium of each Premium Bond is calculated on a daily basis
from the issue date of such Premium Bond until its stated maturity date (or call date, if any) on the basis of a constant
interest rate compounded at each accrual period (with straight line interpolation between the compounding dates).
An owner of a Premium Bond that has amortizable premium is not allowed any deduction for the amortizable
premium; rather the amortizable premium attributable to a taxable year is applied against (and operates to reduce)
the amount of tax-exempt interest payments on the Premium Bonds. During each taxable year, such an owner must
reduce his or her tax basis in such Premium Bond by the amount of the amortizable premium that is allocable to the
portion of such taxable year during which the holder held such Premium Bond. The adjusted tax basis in a Premium
Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (including the sale, exchange, redemption, or
payment at maturity) of such Premium Bond.

Owners of Premium Bonds who did not purchase such Premium Bonds in the initial offering at the issue price should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. Owners of
Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning
the Premium Bonds.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will designate the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating
to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to
carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Ehlers has served as municipal advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor cannot
participate in the underwriting of the Bonds. The financial information included in this Preliminary Official Statement has been
compiled by the Municipal Advisor. Such information does not purport to be a review, audit or certified forecast of future events
and may not conform with accounting principles applicable to compilations of financial information. Ehlers is not a firm of
certified public accountants. Ehlers is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the MSRB as a municipal
advisor.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Bond Trust Services Corporation ("BTSC") and Ehlers Investment Partners, LLC ("EIP") are affiliate companies of Ehlers. BTSC
is chartered by the State of Minnesota and authorized in Minnesota, Wisconsin, Colorado, and Illinois to transact the business
of a limited purpose trust company. BTSC provides paying agent services to debt issuers. EIP is a Registered Investment Advisor
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. EIP assists issuers with the investment of bond proceeds or investing other issuer



funds. This includes escrow bidding agent services. Issuers, such as the City, have retained or may retain BTSC and/or EIP to
provide these services. If hired, BTSC and/or EIP would be retained by the City under an agreement separate from Ehlers.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The basic financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31,2017, have been audited by Hawkins Ash CPAs,
LLP, Manitowoc, Wisconsin, independent auditors (the "Auditor"). The report of the Auditor, together with the basic financial
statements, component units financial statements, and notes to the financial statements are attached hereto as "APPENDIX A —
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS". The Auditor has not been engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its report
included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report. The Auditor also has not performed any
procedures relating to this Preliminary Official Statement.

RISK FACTORS

Following is a description of possible risks to holders of the Bonds without weighting as to probability. This description of risks
is not intended to be all-inclusive, and there may be other risks not now perceived or listed here.

Taxes: The Bonds are general obligations of the City, the ultimate payment of which rests in the City's ability to levy and collect
sufficient taxes to pay debt service. In the event of delayed billing, collection or distribution of property taxes, sufficient funds
may not be available to the City in time to pay debt service when due.

State Actions: Many elements of local government finance, including the issuance of debt and the levy of property taxes, are
controlled by state government. Future actions of the state may affect the overall financial condition of the City, the taxable value
of property within the City, and the ability of the City to levy and collect property taxes.

Future Changes in Law: Various State and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the City and to the
Bonds. The City can give no assurance that there will not be a change in or interpretation of any such applicable laws, regulations
and provisions which would have a material effect on the City or the taxing authority of the City.

Ratings; Interest Rates: In the future, the City's credit rating may be reduced or withdrawn, or interest rates for this type of
obligation may rise generally, either possibility resulting in a reduction in the value of the Bonds for resale prior to maturity.

Tax Exemption: If the federal government taxes all or a portion of the interest on municipal bonds or notes or if the State
government increases its tax on interest on bonds and notes, directly or indirectly, or if there is a change in federal or state tax
policy, then the value of these Bonds may fall for purposes of resale. Noncompliance by the City with the covenants in the
Authorizing Resolution relating to certain continuing requirements of the Code may result in inclusion of interest to be paid on
the Bonds in gross income of the recipient for United States income tax purposes, retroactive to the date of issuance.

Continuing Disclosure: A failure by the City to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking for continuing disclosure (see
"CONTINUING DISCLOSURE") will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds. Any such failure must be reported in
accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal securities dealer before recommending the
purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market. Such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the
Bonds and their market price.

Book-Entry-Only System: The timely credit of payments for principal and interest on the Bonds to the accounts of the Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds may be delayed due to the customary practices, standing instructions or for other unknown reasons by DTC
participants or indirect participants. Since the notice of redemption or other notices to holders of these obligations will be
delivered by the City to DTC only, there may be a delay or failure by DTC, DTC participants or indirect participants to notify
the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

Depository Risk: Wisconsin Statutes direct the local treasurer to immediately deposit upon receipt thereof, the funds of the
municipality in a public depository designated by the governing body. A public depository means a federal or state credit union,
federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust company, mutual savings bank or national bank in
Wisconsin or the local government pooled investment fund operated by the State Investment Board. It is not uncommon for a
municipality to have deposits exceeding limits of federal and state insurance programs. Failure of a depository could result in
loss of public funds or a delay in obtaining them. Such a loss or delay could interrupt a timely payment of municipal debt.



Economy: A combination of economic, climatic, political or civil disruptions or terrorist actions outside of the control of the City,
including loss of major taxpayers or major employers, could affect the local economy and result in reduced tax collections and/or
increased demands upon local government. Real or perceived threats to the financial stability of the City may have an adverse
effect on the value of the Bonds in the secondary market.

Secondary Market for the Bonds: No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale
of the Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Bonds can be sold for any particular price. The underwriters are not
obligated to engage in secondary market trading or to repurchase any of the Bonds at the request of the owners thereof. Prices
of the Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment upward and downward in response to changes in the
credit markets and other prevailing circumstances. No guarantee exists as to the future market value of the Bonds. Such market
value could be substantially different from the original purchase price.

Bankruptcy: The rights and remedies of the holders may be limited by and are subject to the provisions of federal bankruptcy
laws, to other laws, or equitable principles that may affect the enforcement of creditors’ rights, to the exercise of judicial discretion
in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against local governments. The opinion of Bond Counsel to be delivered
with respect to the Bonds will be similarly qualified. See "MUNICIPAL BANKRUPTCY™" herein.

Cybersecurity: The City is dependent on electronic information technology systems to deliver services. These systems may
contain sensitive information or support critical operational functions which may have value for unauthorized purposes. As a
result, the electronic systems and networks may be targets of cyberattack. There can be no assurance that the City will not
experience an information technology breach or attack with financial consequences that could have a material adverse impact.



VALUATIONS

WISCONSIN PROPERTY VALUATIONS; PROPERTY TAXES
Equalized Value

Section 70.57, Wisconsin Statutes, requires the Department of Revenue to annually determine the equalized value (also referred
to as full equalized value or aggregate full value) of all taxable property in each county and taxation district. The equalized value
is an independent estimate of value used to equate individual local assessment policies so that property taxes are uniform
throughout the various subdivisions in the State. Equalized value is calculated based on the history of comparable sales and
information about value changes or taxing status provided by the local assessor. A comparison of the State-determined equalized
value and the local assessed value, expressed as a percentage, is known as the assessment ratio or level of assessment. The
Department of Revenue notifies each county and taxing jurisdiction of its equalized value on August 15; school districts are
notified on October 1. The equalized value of each county is the sum of the valuations of all cities, villages, and towns within
its boundaries. Taxing jurisdictions lying in more than one municipality, such as counties, school districts, or special taxing
districts, use the equalized value of the underlying units in calculating and levying their respective levies. Equalized values are
also used to apportion state aids and calculate municipal general obligation debt limits.

Assessed Value

The "assessed value" of taxable property in a municipality is determined by the local assessor, except for manufacturing properties
which are valued by the State. Each city, village or town retains its own local assessor, who must be certified by the State
Department of Revenue. Assessed value is used by these municipalities to determine tax levy mill rates and to apportion levies
among individual property owners. Each taxing district must assess property at full value at least once in every five-year period.
The State requires that the assessed values must be within 10% of State equalized values at least once every four years. The local
assessor values property as of January 1 each year and submits those values to each municipality by the second Monday in June.
The assessor also reports any value changes taking place since the previous year, to the Department of Revenue, by the second
Monday in June.



CURRENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

2018 Equalized Value

2018 Equalized Value Reduced by Tax Increment Valuation

2018 Assessed Value

2018 EQUALIZED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

Residential
Commercial
Manufacturing
Agricultural
Undeveloped

Ag Forest

Forest

Other

Personal Property
Total

TREND OF VALUATIONS

Assessed
Year Value

2014 $484,792,288
2015 491,692,765
2016 496,894,855
2017 506,172,221
2018 503,860,310

$565,307,400
$528,266,700
$503,860,310

2018 Percent of Total
Equalized Value Equalized Value
$§ 424,586,100 75.107%
111,292,100 19.687%
23,165,700 4.098%
122,300 0.022%
115,300 0.020%
28,400 0.005%
10,800 0.002%
78,400 0.014%
5,908,300 1.045%
$§ 565,307,400 100.000%
Equalized Percent Increase/Decrease
Value' in Equalized Value
$488,728,900 6.24%
490,855,800 0.44%
511,900,300 4.29%
543,381,000 6.15%
565,307,400 4.04%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Bureau of Equalization and Local Government Services Bureau.

1

Includes tax increment valuation.



LARGER TAXPAYERS

2018 Percent of
Equalized City's Total

Taxpayer Type of Business/Property Value! Equalized Value
Gundlach Properties Leased property $ 6,654,660 1.18%
Ditch Witch International Manufacturer 5,910,136 1.05%
Crystal Farms Refrigerated Dist. Food distribution 5,128,880 0.91%
Individual Rental properties 3,922,343 0.69%
M&R Properties LLC Rental properties 3,587,487 0.63%
Fiberdome Manufacturer 3,294,417 0.58%
Aztalan Engineering Manufacturer 3,129,180 0.55%
Individual Rental properties 3,076,160 0.54%
JM Mechler LLC Manufacturer 3,075,935 0.54%
Seljan Manufacturer 2,990,677 0.53%
Total $ 40,769,875 7.21%
City's Total 2018 Equalized Value® $565,307,400

Source: The City.

' Calculated by dividing the 2018 Assessed Values by the 2018 Aggregate Ratio of assessment for the City.

2 Includes tax increment valuation.
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DEBT

DIRECT DEBT'-

General Obligation Debt (see schedules following)

Total General Obligation Debt*

Revenue Debt (see schedules following)

Total revenue debt secured by sewerage, water and electric revenues*

* Preliminary, subject to change. Revenue Debt includes the Concurrent Obligations.

' Outstanding debt is as of the dated date of the Bonds.

11
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18,876,223

17,592,968
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DEBT LIMIT

The constitutional and statutory general obligation debt limit for Wisconsin municipalities, including towns, cities, villages, and
counties (Article XI, Section 3 of the Wisconsin Constitution and Section 67.03, Wisconsin Statutes) is 5% of the current
equalized value.

Equalized Value $ 565,307,400
Multiply by 5% 0.05
Statutory Debt Limit $ 28,265,370
Less: General Obligation Debt (includes the Bonds)* (18,876,223)
Unused Debt Limit* $ 9,389,147

*Preliminary, subject to change.

OVERLAPPING DEBT'

2018 City's
Equalized % In Total Proportionate

Taxing District Value City G.O. Debt? Share
Jefferson County $ 7,260,207,700 7.7864% $ 13,560,000 $ 1,055,836
Lake Mills Area School District 1,052,007,701 53.7361% 35,710,000 19,189,161
Madison Area Technical College 88,862,705,893 0.6362% 165,650,000 1,053,865
City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt $ 21,298,862

' Overlapping debt is as of the dated date of the Bonds. Only those taxing jurisdictions with general obligation

debt outstanding are included in this section.
2 Outstanding debt based on information obtained on EMMA and the Municipal Advisor's records.
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DEBT RATIOS

Debt/Equalized
Value
G.O. Debt $565,307,400
Total General Obligation Debt (includes the Bonds)* $ 18,876,223 3.34%
City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt 21,298,862 3.77%
Total* $ 40,175,085 7.11%

*Preliminary, subject to change.

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY

The City has no record of default in the payment of principal and interest on its debt.

FUTURE FINANCING

Debt/ Per
Capita
5,953!

§ 3,170.88

3,577.84

$§ 6,748.71

In addition to the Concurrent Obligations, the City anticipates borrowing approximately $600,000 for capital projects and
equipment and approximately $200,000 for real estate acquisitions in the next three to six months. In spring or summer 2020, the

City anticipates borrowing approximately $2,260,000 to finance capital projects.

' Estimated 2018 population.
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TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Levy/Equalized Value
Reduced by Tax

Levy for City Increment Valuation

Tax Year Purposes Only % Collected in Dollars per $1,000
2014/15 $3,554,500 100% $7.64
2015/16 3,716,300 100% 8.00
2016/17 3,882,300 100% 8.39
2017/18 4,087,900 100% 8.11
2018/19 4,170,815 i Tn process } 7.90

Property tax statements are distributed to taxpayers by the town, village, and city treasurers in December of the levy year. Current
state law requires counties to pay 100% of the real property taxes levied to cities, villages, towns, school districts and other taxing
entities on or about August 20 of the collection year.

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or village treasurer
in full by January 31, unless the municipality, by ordinance, permits special assessments to be paid in installments. Real property
taxes must be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal installments by January 31 and July 31. Alternatively, municipalities may
adopt a payment plan which permits real property taxes to be paid in three or more equal installments, provided that the first
installment is paid by January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid by April 30 and the remainder is paid by July 31. Amounts paid
on or before January 31 are paid to the town, city or village treasurer. Amounts paid after January 31, are paid to the
county treasurer unless the municipality has authorized payment in three or more installments in which case payment
is made to the town, city or village treasurer. On or before January 15 and February 20 the town, city or village
treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for all collections through December and January, respectively. In
municipalities which have authorized the payment of real property taxes in three or more installments, the town, city
or village treasurer settles with the other taxing jurisdictions on January 15, February 20 and on the fifteenth day of
each month following the month in which an installment payment is required. On or before August 20, the county
treasurer must settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all real property taxes and special taxes. Any county
board may authorize its county treasurer to also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special assessments and
special charges. The county may then recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the property and retain any penalties
or interest on the delinquencies for which it has settled. Uncollected personal property taxes owed by an entity that has ceased
operations or filed a petition for bankruptcy, or are due on personal property that has been removed from the next assessment roll
are collected from each taxing entity in the year following the levy year.
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PROPERTY TAX RATES

Full value rates for property taxes expressed in dollars per $1,000 of equalized value (excluding tax increment valuation) that have
been collected in recent years have been as follows:

Year Levied/

Year Collected Schools’ County Local Other? Total
2014/15 $11.31 $4.56 $7.64 $0.18 $23.69
2015/16 11.47 4.48 8.00 0.18 24.13
2016/17 11.00 4.45 8.39 0.19 24.03
2017/18 10.46 4.31 8.11 0.00 22.88
2018/19 10.07 4.14 7.90 0.00 22.11

Source: Property Tax Rates were extracted from Statement of Taxes prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue,
Division of State and Local Finance.

LEVY LIMITS

Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes, imposes a limit on property tax levies by cities, villages, towns and counties. No city,
village, town or county is permitted to increase its tax levy by a percentage that exceeds its valuation factor (which is defined as
a percentage equal to the greater of either the percentage change in the political subdivision's January 1 equalized value due to
new construction less improvements removed between the previous year and the current or zero percent). The base amount in
any year to which the levy limit applies is the actual levy for the immediately preceding year. In 2018, and in each year thereafter,
the base amount is the actual levy for the immediately preceding year plus the amount of the payment from the State under Section
79.096 of the Wisconsin Statutes (an amount equal to the property taxes formerly levied on certain items of personal property),
and the levy limit is the base amount multiplied by the valuation factor, minus the amount of the payment from the State under
Section 79.096 of the Wisconsin Statutes. This levy limitation is an overall limit, applying to levies for operations as well as for
other purposes.

A political subdivision that did not levy its full allowable levy in the prior year can carry forward the difference between the
allowable levy and the actual levy, up to a maximum of 1.5% of the prior year's actual levy. The use of the carry forward levy
adjustment needs to be approved by a majority vote of the political subdivision's governing body (except in the case of towns)
if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5% and by a super majority vote of the political
subdivision's governing body (three-quarters vote if the governing body is comprised of five or more members, two-thirds vote
if the governing body is comprised of fewer than five members) (except in the case of towns) if the amount of the carry forward
levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the maximum increase of 1.5%. For towns, the use of the carry forward levy adjustment
needs to be approved by a majority vote of the annual town meeting or special town meeting after the town board has adopted
a resolution in favor of the adjustment by a majority vote if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to
0.5% or by two-thirds vote or more if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the maximum of
1.5%.

Beginning with levies imposed in 2015, if a political subdivision does not make an adjustment in its levy as described in the above
paragraph in the current year, the political subdivision may increase its levy by the aggregate amount of the differences between

The Schools tax rate reflects the composite rate of all local school districts and technical college district.

Includes the state reforestation tax which is apportioned to each county on the basis of its full value. Counties,
in turn, apportion the tax to the tax districts within their borders on the basis of full value. It also includes taxes
levied for special purpose districts such as metropolitan sewerage districts, sanitary districts, and public inland
lake protection districts. Tax increment values are not included. State property taxes were eliminated in the
State's 2017 - 2019 budget act.
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the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous year and the actual percent increase in a political subdivision’s levy
attributable to the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous year, for the five years before the current year, less any
amount of such aggregate amount already claimed as an adjustment in any of the previous five years. The calculation of the
aggregate amount available for such adjustment may not include any year before 2014, and the maximum adjustment allowed may
not exceed 5%. The use of the adjustment described in this paragraph requires approval by a two-thirds vote of the political
subdivision’s governing body, and the adjustment may only be used if the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general
obligation debt in the current year is less than or equal to the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general obligation debt
in the previous year.

Special provisions are made with respect to property taxes levied to pay general obligation debt service. Those are described
below. In addition, the statute provides for certain other exclusions from and adjustments to the tax levy limit. Among the items
excluded from the limit are amounts levied for any revenue shortfall for debt service on a revenue bond issued under
Section 66.0621. Among the adjustments permitted is an adjustment applicable when a tax increment district terminates, which
allows an amount equal to the prior year's allowable levy multiplied by 50% of the political subdivision's percentage growth due
to the district's termination.

With respect to general obligation debt service, the following provisions are made:

(a) Ifapolitical subdivision's levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including debt service on debt issued or
reissued to fund or refund outstanding obligations of the political subdivision and interest on outstanding obligations of the
political subdivision, on debt originally issued before July 1, 2005, is less in the current year than in the previous year, the political
subdivision is required to reduce its levy limit in the current year by the amount of the difference between the previous year's levy
and the current year's levy.

(b) For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the preceding year is less than the amount of
debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is increased by the difference between the two amounts. This adjustment
is based on scheduled debt service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service (after taking into account offsetting
revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax increment revenues or surplus funds). Therefore,
the levy limit could negatively impact political subdivisions that experience a reduction in offsetting revenues.

(c) The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general obligation debt authorized on or after
July 1, 2005.

The Bonds were authorized after July 1, 2005 and therefore the levy limits do not apply to taxes levied to pay debt service on the
Bonds.
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THE ISSUER

CITY GOVERNMENT

The City was incorporated in 1905 and is governed by a City Council, which consists of five City Council members. Council
Members are elected to staggered three-year terms. The appointed City Manager, Treasurer/Finance Director and City Clerk are
responsible for administrative details and financial records.

EMPLOYEES; PENSIONS

The City employs a staff of 57 full-time, 15 part-time, and 12 seasonal employees. All eligible employees in the City are covered
under the Wisconsin Retirement System ("WRS") established under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Chapter 40"). The
WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Department of Employee Trust Funds ("ETF")
administers the WRS. Required contributions to the WRS are determined by the ETF Board pursuant to an annual actuarial
valuation in accordance with Chapter 40 and the ETF's funding policies. The ETF Board has stated that its funding policy is to
(1) ensure funds are adequate to pay benefits; (ii) maintain stable and predictable contribution rates for employers and employees;
and (iii) maintain inter-generational equity to ensure the cost of the benefits is paid for by the generation that receives the benefits.

City employees are required to contribute half ofthe actuarially determined contributions, and the City may not pay the employees'
required contribution. The total retirement plan contributions (including both the City’s and the employees' contributions) for
the fiscal year ended December 31,2015 (“Fiscal Year 2015"), December 31,2016 ("Fiscal Year 2016") and December 31,2017
("Fiscal Year 2017") were $228,650, $463,629, and $513,008, respectively. During Fiscal Year 2015, Fiscal Year 2016 and
Fiscal Year 2017, the City’s portion of contributions to WRS (not including any employee contributions) totaled $226,072,
$229,783 and $244,156, respectively.

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 ("GASB 68") for Fiscal Year 2016.

GASB 68 requires calculation of a net pension liability for the pension plan. The net pension liability is calculated as the
difference between the pension plan's total pension liability and the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The pension plan's total
pension liability is the present value of the amounts needed to pay pension benefits earned by each participant in the pension plan
based on the service provided as of the date of the actuarial valuation. In other words, it is a measure of the present value of
benefits owed as of a particular date based on what has been earned only up to that date, without taking into account any benefits
earned after that date. The pension plan's fiduciary net position is the market value of plan assets formally set aside in a trust and
restricted to paying pension plan benefits. If the pension plan's total pension liability exceeds the pension plan's fiduciary net
position, then a net pension liability results. If the pension plan's fiduciary net position exceeds the pension plan's total pension
liability, then a net pension asset results.

As of December 31, 2016, the total pension liability of the WRS was calculated as $93.4 billion and the fiduciary net position of
the WRS was calculated as $92.6 billion, resulting in a net pension liability of $0.8 billion.

Under GASB 68, each participating employer in a cost-sharing pension plan must report the employer's proportionate share of
the net pension liability or net pension asset of the pension plan. Accordingly, for Fiscal Year 2017, the City reported a liability
of $198,964 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the WRS. The net pension liability was measured as of
December 31, 2016 based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating
employers. The City’s proportion was 0.02413916% of the aggregate WRS net pension liability as of December 31, 2016.

The calculation of the total pension liability and fiduciary net position are subject to a number of actuarial assumptions, which
may change in future actuarial valuations. Such changes may have a significant impact on the calculation of net pension liability
of the WRS, which may also cause the ETF Board to change the contribution requirements for employers and employees. For
more detailed information regarding the WRS and such actuarial assumptions, see "APPENDIX A - FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS" attached hereto.
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Recognized and Certified Bargaining Units

All eligible City personnel are covered by the Municipal Employment Relations Act ("MERA") of the Wisconsin Statutes.
Pursuant to that law, employees have rights to organize and collectively bargain with municipal employers. MERA was amended
by 2011 Wisconsin Act 10 (the "Act") and by 2011 Wisconsin Act 32, which altered the collective bargaining rights of public
employees in Wisconsin.

Asaresult ofthe 2011 amendments to MERA, the City is prohibited from bargaining collectively with municipal employees, other
than public safety and transit employees, with respect to any factor or condition of employment except total base wages. Even
then, the City is limited to increasing total base wages beyond any increase in the consumer price index since 180 days before the
expiration of the previous collective bargaining agreement (unless City were to seek approval for a higher increase through a
referendum). Ultimately, the City can unilaterally implement the wages for a collective bargaining unit.

Under the changes to MERA, impasse resolution procedures were removed from the law for municipal employees of the type
employed by the City, including binding interest arbitration. Strikes by any municipal employee or labor organization are
expressly prohibited. As a practical matter, it is anticipated that strikes will be rare. Furthermore, if strikes do occur, they may
be enjoined by the courts. Additionally, because the only legal subject of bargaining is the base wage rates, all bargaining over
items such as just cause, benefits, and terms of conditions of employment are prohibited and cannot be included in a collective
bargaining agreement. Impasse resolution for public safety employees and transit employees is subject to final and binding
arbitration procedures, which do not include a right to strike. Interest arbitration is available for transit employees if certain
conditions are met.

The following bargaining units represent employees of the City:

Expiration Date of
Bargaining Unit Current Contract

Wisconsin Police Protective Association December 31, 2020

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City does not provide any other post employment benefits.

LITIGATION
There is no litigation threatened or pending questioning the organization or boundaries of the City or the right of any of its officers

to their respective offices or in any manner questioning their rights and power to execute and deliver the Bonds or otherwise
questioning the validity of the Bonds.

22



MUNICIPAL BANKRUPTCY

Municipalities are prohibited from filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 (reorganization) or Chapter 7 (liquidation) of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. §§ 101-1532) (the "Bankruptcy Code"). Instead, the Bankruptcy Code permits municipalities to
file a petition under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, but only if certain requirements are met. These requirements include that
the municipality must be "specifically authorized" under State law to file for relief under Chapter 9. For these purposes, "State
law" may include, without limitation, statutes of general applicability enacted by the State legislature, special legislation applicable
to a particular municipality, and/or executive orders issued by an appropriate officer of the State’s executive branch.

As of the date hereof, Wisconsin law contains no express authority for municipalities to file for bankruptcy relief under Chapter
9 of the Bankruptcy Code.

Nevertheless, there can be no assurance (a) that State law will not change in the future, while the Bonds are outstanding, in a way
that would allow the City to file for bankruptcy relief under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code; or (b) even absent such a change
in State law, that an executive order or other executive action could not effectively authorize the City to file for relief under
Chapter 9. If, in the future, the City were to file a bankruptcy case under Chapter 9, the relevant bankruptcy court would need
to consider whether the City could properly do so, which would involve questions regarding State law authority as well as other
questions such as whether the City is a municipality for bankruptcy purposes. If the relevant bankruptcy court concluded that the
City could properly file a bankruptcy case, and that determination was not reversed, vacated, or otherwise substantially altered
on appeal, then the rights of holders of the Bonds could be modified in bankruptcy proceedings. Such modifications could be
adverse to holders of the Bonds, and there could ultimately be no assurance that holders of the Bonds would be paid in full or
in part on the Bonds. Further, under such circumstances, there could be no assurance that the Bonds would not be treated as
general, unsecured debt by a bankruptcy court, meaning that claims of holders of the Bonds could be viewed as having no priority
(a) over claims of other creditors of the City; (b) to any particular assets of the City, or (c¢) to revenues otherwise designated for
payment to holders of the Bonds.

Moreover, if the City were determined not to be a "municipality” for the purposes of the Bankruptcy Code, no representations
can be made regarding whether it would still be eligible for voluntary or involuntary reliefunder Chapters of the Bankruptcy Code
other than Chapter 9 or under similar federal or state law or equitable proceeding regarding insolvency or providing for protection
from creditors. In any such case, there can be no assurance that the consequences described above for the holders of the Bonds
would not occur.
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FUNDS ON HAND (as of April 30, 2019)

Fund

General Fund - Money Market

Special Assessments
Library Endowment
Library Expansion

Water Utility Bond Reserve
Water Utility P&I Account
Fire Department Fund
Revolving Loan

2016 Bond B GO Bond
Now Account - All Utilities

Bond Reserve - Electric Utility

Bond P&I - Electric Utility
Bond P&I - Sewer Utility

Bond P&I - Municipal Building

Park Impact Fees

TID #2

TID #3

TID #4

TID #5

TID #6

Reserve Fund - City
Sewer Impact Fees
Water Impact Fees
2012 Bonds

Cemetery Perpetual Care
DNR Replacement
Bond Reserve Fund - Sewer
2014 Bond P&I

Tax Account

2015 Bond Funds
Budget Reserves
General Fund Checking
2017 Bond A

2017 Bond B

2017 C Electric Bond
DMV ACCT

2018 Notes A

2018 Utility Bonds B
Water AMI

Electric AMI

Total All Funds

Total Cash
and Investments

$ 4,923,002
433,051
57,493
88,964
263,545
898
59,057
355,920
60,832
808,244
648,252
667,585
119,980
1,420
141,311
212,767
125,182
189,606
59

443
92,147
283,715
11,778
20,129
286,108
245,666
488,220
12,838

1
158,880
0
210,922
57,567
151,495
774,042
1,033
886,695
1,164,158
345,092
489,331
14,837,428
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Revenues available for debt service on the City's enterprise funds have been as follows as of December 31 each year:

2015 2016 2017
Water
Total Operating Revenues $ 888,631 $ 1,003,831 $ 1,144,395
Less: Operating Expenses (806,851) (860,411) (975,872)
Operating Income $ 81,780 $ 143,420 $ 168,523
Plus: Depreciation 180,361 207,592 215,757
Interest Income 1,087 1,255 1,029
Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 263,228 $ 352,267 $ 385,309
Sewer
Total Operating Revenues $ 1,520,193 $ 1,505,493 $ 1,543,700
Less: Operating Expenses (1,782,400) (1,800,778) (1,867,360)
Operating Income $ (262,207) $ (295,285) $ (323,660)
Plus: Depreciation 463,812 485,744 490,605
Interest Income 9,313 13,572 9,243
Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 210,918 $ 204,031 $ 176,188
Electric
Total Operating Revenues $ 8,246,746 $ 8,205,219 $ 7,978,355
Less: Operating Expenses (7,235,036) (7,041,880) (6,922,567)
Operating Income $ 1,011,710 $ 1,163,339 $ 1,055,788
Plus: Depreciation 579,664 666,014 691,778
Interest Income 6,956 6,648 8,027
Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 1,598,330 $ 1,836,001 $ 1,755,593
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SUMMARY GENERAL FUND INFORMATION

Following are summaries of the revenues and expenditures and fund balances for the City's General Fund. These summaries are
not purported to be the complete audited financial statements of the City, and potential purchasers should read the included
financial statements in their entirety for more complete information concerning the City. Copies of the complete audited financial
statements are available upon request. See Appendix A for the City's 2017 audited financial statements.

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

COMBINED STATEMENT 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Adopted
Audited Audited Audited | Unaudited' Budget®
Revenues
Taxes and special assessments $3,675,255 $3,838,900 $4,000,799 @ $4,228987 |'$ 4,680,815
Intergovernmental 812,623 1,118,365 1,694,839 1,061,937 1,435,700
Licenses and permits 154,700 154,250 148,573 198,769 151,900
Penalties and forfeitures 57,609 52,509 66,155 59,951 45,000
Public charges for services 152,014 159,331 154,636 165,371 419,200
Intergovernmental charges for services 287,022 306,082 340,994 353,548 0
Miscellaneous general revenues 330,494 318,463 367,240 499,278 180,600
Total Revenues $5,469,717 $5.947.900 $6,773,236 | $6,567.841 | $§ 6,913,215
Expenditures
Current:
General government $ 978,793 $1,021,451 $1,017,146 = $ 994,550 | $ 595,300
Public safety 1,556,024 1,633,076 1,601,364 1,567,653 1,809,100
Public works 962,706 1,002,879 1,122,967 1,139,934 1,060,000
Health and social services 110,211 135,520 138,506 157,731 299,000
Culture and recreation 677,374 697,300 704,343 756,843 1,376,800
Conservation and development 111,831 107,921 273,588 533,677 139,800
Debt service 1,164,234 1,253,623 1,403,771 1,534,223 1,576,315
Capital outlay 1,807,094 4,631,023 2,964,307 1,795,304 56,400
$7.368,267 90,482,793 $9,225992 | $8.479915 ' $§ 6,912,715
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures %(1,898,550) %(4,534,893) $2,452,756) 1 %(1,912,074)'$ 500
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from capital lease 167,259 66,626 0 0
Proceeds of/premium on long-term debt 3,495,000 2,050,000 3,218,970 2,318,167
Operating transfers in 466,685 547,858 532,878 540,527
Operating transfers out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $4,128,944 $2,664,484 $3,751,848 | $2,858,694 | $ 0
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing  $2,230,394 §1,870,409) $1,299,092 ' $§ 946,620 ' $ 500
uses
General Fund Balance January 1 2,944,846 5,175,240 3,304,831 4,603,923 5,550,543
Prior Period Adjustments 0 0 0 0 0
General Fund Balance December 31 $5,175,240 $3,304,831 $4,603,923 @ $5,550,543 ' $ 5,551,043
DETAILS OF DECEMBER 31 FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 1,059,399 914,699 759,350
Restricted 0 0 0
Committed 0 0 400,140
Assigned 0 0 0
Unassigned 4,115,841 2,390,132 3,444,433
Total $5,175,240 $3,304,831 $4,603,923

1

2 The2019 budget was adopted on November 6, 2018.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

LOCATION

The City of Lake Mills, with a 2010 U.S. Census population of 5,708 and a current estimated population of 5,953 comprises an
area of 32.75 square miles and is located approximately 20 miles east of the City of Madison, Wisconsin.

LARGER EMPLOYERS'

Larger employers in the City include the following:

Estimated No. of

Firm Type of Business/Product Employees
School District of Lake Mills Area Elementary and secondary education 243
Hamlin Inc. Electronic equipment & supply manufacturer 130
Wisco Farm Co-op/Crystal Farms Manufacturing - distribution 115
Hammerhead Manufacturer, welding, fabrication 100
Seljan Tool Co., Inc. Tool & die, plastic products 100
Fiberdome, Inc. Mfg. fiberglass products, boat manufacturer 100
City of Lake Mills Municipal government and services 88 ’
Aztalan Engineering Inc. Mfg. precision machine components 78
Willowbrook Nursing Rehab Center Health care 70
Daybreak Foods Inc. Poultry processing plant 67
Horizon Polymer Manufacturing 40

Source:  ReferenceUSA, written and telephone survey (May 2018), 2018 Wisconsin Manufacturers Register, and the
Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

This does not purport to be a comprehensive list and is based on available data obtained through a survey of
individual employers, as well as the sources identified above. Some employers do not respond to inquiries for
employment data.

61 full-time, 15 part-time and 12 seasonal employees.
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BUILDING PERMITS

2015

New Single Family Homes

No. of building permits 25

Valuation $3,051,566
New Multiple Family Buildings

No. of building permits 2

Valuation $700,000
New Commercial/Industrial

No. of building permits 0

Valuation $0
All Building Permits

(including additions and remodelings)

No. of building permits 155

Valuation $11,948,726

Source: The City.

' Asof May 13, 2019.

2016

25
$4,425,804

7
$2,800,000

4
$1,062,000

146
$9,557,204
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2017

14
$2,881,454

2
$500,000

1
$620,000

316
$6,368,541

2018

9
$3,094,737

5
$3,491,900

3
$2,520,000

119
$12,846,026

2019'

3
$617,210

$0

$0

42
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U.S. CENSUS DATA

Population Trend: City of Lake Mills

2000 U.S. Census 4,843
2010 U.S. Census 5,708
2018 Estimated Population 5,953
Percent of Change 2000 - 2010 + 17.86%
Income and Age Statistics
City of Lake State of United
Mills Jefferson County Wisconsin States
2017 per capita income $28,078 $32,317 $30,557 $31,177
2017 median household income $65,208 $51,842 $56,759 $57,652
2017 median family income $71,148 $64,570 $72,542 $70,850
2017 median gross rent $967 $895 $813 $982
2017 median value owner occupied units $176,000 $304,000 $169,300 $193,500
2017 median age 39.0 yrs. 57.1 yrs. 39.2 yrs. 37.8 yrs.
State of Wisconsin United States
City % of 2017 per capita income 91.89% 90.06%
City % of 2017 median family income 98.08% 100.42%

Housing Statistics
City of Lake Mills
2000 2017 Percent of Change

All Housing Units 2,065 2,664 29.01%

Source: 2000 and 2010 Census of Population and Housing, and 2017 American Community Survey (Based on a five-year
estimate), U.S. Census Bureau (www.factfinder2.census.gov).

EMPLOYMENT/UNEMPLOYMENT DATA

Rates are not compiled for individual communities with populations under 25,000.

Average Employment Average Unemployment
Year Jefferson County Jefferson County State of Wisconsin
2015 43,752 4.2% 4.6%
2016 44,095 3.9% 4.0%
2017 44,516 3.2% 3.3%
2018, December 44,786 2.6% 2.8%
2019, January 44,337 3.5% 3.5%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

29


http://(www.factfinder2.census.gov

APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Potential purchasers should read the included financial statements in their entirety for more complete information concerning the
City’s financial position. Such financial statements have been audited by the Auditor, to the extent and for the periods indicated
thereon. The City has not requested or engaged the Auditor to perform, and the Auditor has not performed, any additional
examination, assessments, procedures or evaluation with respect to such financial statements since the date thereof or with respect
to this Preliminary Official Statement, nor has the City requested that the Auditor consent to the use of such financial statements
in this Official Statement. Although the inclusion of the financial statements in this Preliminary Official Statement is not intended
to demonstrate the fiscal condition of the City since the date of the financial statements, in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds, the City represents that there have been no material adverse change in the financial position or results of operations of the
City, nor has the City incurred any material liabilities, which would make such financial statements misleading.

Copies of the complete audited financial statements for the past three years and the current budget are available upon request from
Ehlers.
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Part af your business. Part of your ﬁﬁ: | C P A S

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Common Council
City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin,
as of December 31, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the City has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 73 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are
not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, Wisconsin Retirement
System schedules and supplemental pension defined benefit plan schedules, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin’s basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the detailed statement of
revenues and other financing sources - budget and actual - general fund and the detailed
statement of expenditures and other financing uses - budget and actual - general fund are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the



combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The detailed statement of revenues and other financing sources - budget and actual - general
fund and detailed statement of expenditures and other financing uses - budget and actual -
general fund have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

June 8, 2018, on our consideration of the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

HAWKINS ASH CPAS, LLP

Mo dis Acd apAs, LeP

Manitowoc, Wisconsin
June 8, 2018



‘sjuswale)s 8y} Jo Jed Siy) Ul punoy 8q UED 0s|e Sa)Njels 8jelS UISUOISIAN 8yl Aq palinbal
uolewuojul Areyabpng “spuny [enpialpul s,A11D 8y} Jnoge s|ielap Moys 0} papiaocid S| uonew.oul
leluswa|ddns ‘sajou ay} JoYy "S)UBWIS)E)S BSOY) Ul PAUIBIUOD EJep 8} JO WOS [iejap Ul uiejdxa

SJUSWIB)E)S [BIOUBUL BY} 0} SBJOU BY| 'S8J0U 8Uj} S| SJUSWIS)E)S [BIoUBUl OISE] ) JO UOIO8S JXaU Y|

‘sjuswalels
puny Aseionply 8y} (¢ pue ‘sjuswajels puny Asejaiidold ay) (z ‘sjuswale)s spuny [ejuswulanob

ay} (| :syuswale)s |eloueuly puny 8y} 0} sued 881y} ale a1y SJUSWS)E)S SpIM-JUsWIUISA0D

By} uey |lejap alow apiaoid sjuswalels 8say] ‘jJuswulanob s A0 ay) Jo sped |enpiaipul

9Uj} JO SAIHIAIOE U} UO SN0} SjUSWS)e)S 9SaY| 'SJUSWSIE]S [eloUBUl) PUN) dle SJUBW)E)S JXau ay

‘snjejs |ejoueul s,A1D 8y} Inoge uolewloul wis}-Huo| pue poys yjoq apiroid Ay “syuswsiels
|eioueul) 9pIM-JUBWUISA0B BU) SIE SJUSWS)E)S [e1oueUl dIseq SU} Ul SJUBLS)elS OM) 1Sl 8y L

sjuawajess |eoueul siseg

< Arewwns
SjusWalels SjusWalels Ssjuawalels
|eloueul [eloueul 4 |eloueul4
ay} 0} seJoN pun4 SpPIA\-IUSWUIBAOD
Sjuswalels sisfjeuy
|eloueul 4 pue uoissnasiq
olseg sjuswabeue|y
} ainbig

Hoday |eldueuld [enuuy jo syuduodwo) palinbay

‘S|l e Jo AlD 8y} JO UoRIPUOD [EloURUY BY} JO Bulpuelsiapun s Japeal

8y} 80UByUS ||IM Jey} uolewloUl [ejuswalddns Jayjo sulejuod Hodal Siy} ‘SjUsWS)e)s |eloueul JISeq
8y} 0} UOHIPPE U] SJUBLUSIE]S [BIOUBUIY PUN) PUE SJUSWS)RIS SpIM-JuBUIBA0B Jo asn ay} ybnoayy
IO By} JO SMaIA Jualayip om) Juasald sjuswajess [eloueuly oiseq 8y (| 8inbi4 99s) sjuswajels
|elouBUl 8y} 0} S8J0U (g pue ‘SjusLale}s [BIOUBUL PUN (Z ‘S)UBWSIE)S [BIOUBUL SPIM-JUSWIUIBACD

(1 ‘s)usuodwod 881y} JO ISISUOD SJUBLIBIE)S [BIOURUI DISB] SAND BY| "SIUSWle)S [eloueul

2ISEeq 8|1 8%E1 40 AIID 8y} 0} UONONPOJIUl UB SB 8AISS 0} PapudlUl S| SISA[BUEB pUB UOISSNoSIp SIY |

SJUaWId)e}S [_IDURULY BY} JO MBIAIBAQ

"Jeak [eosl 8y} Jo} sainjipuadxa puny [elauab [}o} jo Jusotad €'/¢ 10 CEY T ES

SEM pun4 |eJauas) ay} Joj douejeq puny paubisseun ‘Jeak |eosly JUsLINd 8y} JO pud ay} Iy
‘(@2uereq puny paubisseun) uonalosip sjuswuianob ayy je buipuads

1o} 9|qe|ieAe si ‘g/6'9LE‘€$ JO ‘Junowe [e10} siyj Jo Jusdiad /G Ajejewixoiddy seah soud ay)
yym uosliedwod ul gge‘zS9 L $ Jo asealoul ue ‘295 L./ G$ Jo seoueleq puny Buipus pauiquiod
pauodal spuny [elusWUIBA0B S||IIAl 83T 10 AlID By} ‘Jeak [BOSl JUSLIND U} JO BSO[O 8Y} JO SY
‘uopisod Jau sapiAnoe adA}-ssaulsng ay) pue saljiAljoe [ejuswuIanob

8y} Ul aseasoul ue o} anp ‘1.8/‘//1$ Aq pasealoul uoiysod jau [ejo} s juswuianob ay |
‘(uomisod 18u) 6EE‘L0Z'62$ AQ JB8A [BOSI) BY) JO BSOJO BYj} JB S82IN0SBI JO SMO|JUl PaJIajep pue
saljljigel| s) papaadxa S||IN 93e7 JO AJID U} JO S82IN0SAI JO SMOJJINO PaLIBJOP pue S}OSSE ay |

sybiybIH jeroueury

"9AIJBLIBU SIY} MOJ|0} UIYM ‘SjudLaie)s

|eloueul oIseq s,A11D 8y} Ul PaysiuIny 8ABY 9M Jey} UOIJEWLIOJU| [BUOIPPE YJIM Uoiounfuod uj aisy
pajusseld uonew.ojul 8Y) pesl 0} siepeal abeinoous ep\ “/L0Z ‘L€ Jequieos pepus Jeak [eosy ay}
10J S|IIIN @eT J0 AND BU} JO SBIIIAIOE [eloUBUY BU} JO SISA|EUE PUE MBIAJISAO BAlBLIEU SIU} S)UBWSIER)S
|eloueul o1seq S||IIN @eT JO AND BU) JO SIepeal Jayo am ‘S|[IIAl 8YeT 40 AN By} Jo Juswabeuew sy

sisAjeuy pue uoissnasiq s juswabeuep

7 fO 1D

A-7



*SJUSJUOD JO B|CE} Y} Ul PayiUspl SE 0} paliayel 8q Ued uoiewlojul Aleyusws|ddns
paJinbay “s|jIA 8. Jo AlD ay) Bujuieouod uoiewsojul Arejuswajddns palinbal uiepad sapnjoul
Hodal sy ‘sejou BuiAuedwoooe pue sjuswale)s [eloueul dISeq ayj 0} UOIHIPPE U] - uoiewsoyu] Jayjo

"SJUBJUOD JO S|} BY} Ul PalIUSP! SE 0} Pa.Ia)al 8 UBD SJUSWSJR)S [elouBUl 8y} 0} S8jou
8yl "SjusWele]s [BIDUBUL pUNy PUB BpIM-JusWLIBA0B 8y} ul papirocid ejep 8y} jo Buipuejsiepun ||ny
© 0} [eljuSSS® S| Jey} UOJJeWIoul [eUOIIPPE SPIACId S8J0U 8Y] - SJUaWdle}s [eloueUl4 Yy} O} SaJON

*Spuny [ejuswuIA0B Joy pasn jeys 8| yonw s| spuny AJeionpyy Joy pasn Buunodoe syl “s|iIN

e Jo AuD ay) uiyum suonalpsunf Buixe) Jayjo oy SUOIS||0D X} PUE [|0J XE} S} SPI0I3J YDIYym puny
xe} Apadoud ay} si s||IN 9xeT 40 AND ayy Aq paulejuiew puny Arelonply Juesyiubis ysow sy “swelboud
umo s|iIN @3e Jo AlD ay) uoddns 0} a|ge|ieA. 10U 8Je Spunj 9SOy} JO S82IN0SaJ 8y} 9snesaq
JUSWAE)S [BIOUBUL 9PIM-JUBWIUISA0B 8U) Ul pajosjjal 10U ale spuny AJeionpl4 ‘juswuianob ayj apisino
salued Jo Jyauaq ay) Jo} p|ay S82IN0SaJ I0J JUNOIDE 0} pasn aJe spuny Alelonpl4 - spung Aseionpi4

"SBI}IAIJOR JO JUBWSYe)S 8U) pue uopisod }8u JO Juswale)s ay) Ul saiiAloe adAy

-SS8UISN( U} Ul UMOYS SUOIOUN) 8SOY} Se sWes ay} aJe spunj 8say] ‘suoljelado Jamas s Joj pue
A)Anoe Jsjem pue dlj09]9 S)l J0j JUNODDE 0} Spuny asidiajua sasn S||IN a3eT Jo AND 8y ‘sjuswale)s
|eloueUly SpIM-JUBWUIBACB By} Ul saniAloe adAl-ssauisng se pajuasaid suopouny swes ay) Jodal

0} pasn s| puny Areyalidoud v “puny Asejaudold suo sey siilN 9xeT Jo A1) 8yl - spung Aiejaudoad

‘saln)ipuadxa pue sanuaAal [enjoe 8y} pue }ebpnq [euly 8y} usam}aq adueleA ay} (f pue

‘puny jesauab ay) ul saoueleq Buipus pue ‘suoneudoidde o} sabieyd ‘seoinosas [enjoe ay} (g {1ounod
ay} Aq papuawe se }abpnq [eul ay} (Z ‘1ounod ay) Aq paydope se 1abpnq euibiio ay} (| :suwnjod
INoJ SMOYS JuaWwiale)s ay | ‘juswnoop jabpng |eba| sy} se suoleslisselo pue ‘ebenbue| ‘Jew.oy swes
ay) Buisn pajuasald si pue Buizunoooe Jjo siseq Alejabpng ay) sasn juswaje)s uosiiedwod Alejabpng
ay] ‘pajdope sem jabpng ay) usaym pauueld se saolaIas ay) Buipinoid ul papaadons AjQ ayj jou

10 JBYIdym pue soueulplo 126png ayy yum paljdwod AjD sy [|om Moy sajelisuowsp puny [esausb ayy
10} papinoid ajnpayos uosiiedwod Aieyebpng ayy “saniAioe pouad Jusiind asay) adueUly 0} S82IN0S
paliIuap! WoJj spuny ule}qo o} AN ay} sazioyine osje 3| "wauyy Joy Aed 0} moy pue apiaoid 0} sadInIes
UoIYMm Jnoge [1IoUnod 8y} JO SUOISIap ay) pue ‘AjID 8y} jo Juswabeuew ay) ‘AlD ay) Jo suazio

oy} wouJy indui seyelodiooul yeyy Juswnoop paydope Ajjeba) e si1eBpng 8y "S8IN}e}S UISUOISIAN

10 9)e)S 8y} Aq palinbal se ‘puny |esauab sy Joy }ebpng [enuue ue sydope sjjin 8xeT Jo AND syl

‘SJUsWae}s [elouBUl puny
8y} Jo Med e S| Jey} UOIBI|IDU0D8I B Ul PaQLIOSap SI SPUN) [EJUSWUISACB pue (SaljAlo. JO Juswales
8y} pue uonisod }au Jo Juswalels sy} ul papodal) saljiAloe Juswulanob usamiaq diysuonelas ay
‘swelboud s A)D 8y} 8oueUl 0} B|ge|leAR SB2IN0Sal [eloUeRUl SSO| JO SI0W e BIBY} I dUIWIS)BP Jay
Jo wiy sdjay Jey) MaIA Ws}-Joys pajielap e Japeal ay) aAIb SjusWa)e)s [BioueUl puny [B)usWUIaA0B
ay) ‘Ynsal e sy 'snooy Buipuads wis)-Hoys e sapircid yoiym ‘Buiunodoe [eniooe paiipow

paj|ea poyjaw Bupunoooe ue Buisn pajodal aie spuny [ejJUSWUIBA0S) JedA Jxau ayj ul Buipuads

10} 9|qE|leAR 8] ||IM Jey) pus-Ieak Je o] 8Je SaJuUoW Jeym pue ‘Jno Pue Ul MO} YSED OJUI POHSAUOD
aq AjlpeaJ ued s}jasse Moy U0 SNO0} SpUNy 8S8Y ] "SPUN} [EJUSWUIBAOD Ul O} PAJUNOIDE SJE SBDIAISS
o1seq s,AlD 98U} 4O JSO|\ "SIUBWAJE]S |BIOUBUL SPIM-)UBWUISA0B 8U} Ul SBIJIAIIOE [EjUSWUIBACD

se papodal suofjouny asoy} Joj JUNOJOE 0} PASN BJe SPuny [EJUBWUISAOS) - SPUNS [EJUBWILIDA0D

‘spuny Asejaudoud pue spuny

|eluswuIaA0B :sal0681ed OM) OJUI PBPIAIP 89 UED S|[I\| 83eT 40 AlID 8Y) JO Spuny 8y} JO ||y "9oUBUIpIO
196png s A1) 8y} JO SB)NJEIS UISUOISIAN JO 91BIS By} SB Yons ‘sjuswalinbai [eba| pajejal-aoueuly yim
(eoueldwoo-uou Jo) aoueldwod J08al pue 8INSuUd 0} BuUNOIDE PUN) SBSN ‘UISUODSIAA Ul SBIHUD
|eluswulanob Jaylo [le a1l ‘S|IIIN 83T JO AUD 8yl 'S8Ai}oalqo Jo sapiAloe oyoads Joj pajebaibes
usa(q 9ABY ey} S90IN0SBI JOAO |0JJUOD UIBJUIBW O} PasSN SI Jey} sjunoooe pajejal jo Buidnoib e s puny
V 'SaljIAoE Juesyiubls Jsow s AHD 8y} Je Yoo pajiejap alow e apiaoid sjuswale)s [eioueUl puny ay |

Sjuswiaje)s |eloueUl4 pung

‘S|l 9xeT Jo AN ayy

AQ paIao SOVIAISS D1I}09|9 PUE JOMBS PUE JBJem au} apnjoul 8say] "apiroid 0} siawolsnd sabieyd
AID 8y 1eY) 8soy) ale safiAnoe adA}-ssauisng 8y "SaljIAlOe 9S8y} JO }SOW adueul spuny jueld
|eJopay} pue ajels pue saxe)} Aadold “uonessiulwpe [esousb pue ‘uonealdal pue syled ‘Ajases olgnd
Se 4ons sa0IAI8s o1seq S,AlID By} 4O JSOW apnjoul saijiAloe [eluswulanob ay) “seniAnoe adA}-ssauisng
(z pue saniAijoe [ejuswuidnob (| :sa10ba)ed om) Ojul PSPIAIP 1B SJUBWS).]S dSpIM-Judwulanob ay |

"UoHIPUOD [BloUBULY

s AuD ayy ebneb 0} Aem auo si uonisod Jou Buunses|y *Se2IN0Sal JO SMOJJUI PaJISep pue sanljiqel|
|ej0} pUB S92IN0SAI JO SMO[JINO PaLIBJBP pue S}asse (B0} S.ANID dY) Usamaq aoualaylp 8y si uopisod
19N "pabueyd aney Aay) moy pue uopisod jau s AlD 8y} podal sjuswale)s apim-juswuianob omy ay |

"8|oym e se

snjejs [eloueuy s, A1 8y) INoge uojewloul wisl-buo| pue Hoys apiaoid sjuswalels apim-juawuianob
8y] ‘ssauIsnq Jojoas-ajeAld e JO JUSWS)E)S |elouBUl B O} JBWIO) Ul JejilIS ‘Seoueul s, A0 8y} Jo
MBIAIBAO PeOlq B UM Jopeal sy} apiroid o) paubisap ale sjuswele)s [BIoUBUl SpIM-JUSWIUIBA0B 8y

SjuUBWIBIE)S [B1oURUL] SPIM-IUSWILIDAOS)

A-8



-lL-

'2L€°121$ Aq uowisod Jou s,A)10 ay) pasealdul s9

'607°9G$ Aq u

nisod Jou s,A11D 8y} pasealoul sal

208'220'6C § 6EEL0Z'6C $ LOVEYL'YC § 192°0/2%C $ LOV'EL8Y § TLS0€6F $
- v9L - - - ¥9L
198°9€Z - 198'9€C - - -
\ZL'L28' Lz vBLTI0'6T  LLS'TEV'ET  GBE'6YLYT  0SS'YEE'Y  66L'€L8Y
718'856 18L'LLL £96'6.L1 zLe'LeL 168'8.LY 60195
- - (20v'619) (1e1'6z9) L0¥'6LG 1€1'625
718'856 18L'LLL 0££'666 €05°059 (955°0%) (zzLzLy)
06L°LLL°LL  66ETB6'8L  €52'Gc00L  ¥B9'BEL'OL  LEG'980°L  GOL'EV8'8
601€28°} G/G°€88"} 601°€28°} G1G°€88°) - -
0Zv'9v6 095°8%0°} 0Zr'9v6 095°8%0°} - -
¥2L'SSe'L 655°902°L ¥2L'sSe'L 655°902°L - -
109°25% 26£°T6Y - - 109°2GY 26£°26Y
2€5'6.6 YZr'9sy - - 2€5'6.6 yZh'95y
950°12L zeL'82L - - 950°12L zeL'82L
YP0'6EL 9L+'061 - - y¥0'6€L 91061
090'2LL°} 500'918°¢ - - 090'22LL  S00'9L8'E
6LE'GL6'} 6691802 - - 6LE'GL6'L  G69°180°C
G98°L0L°} 170'820°} - - G98°L0L'L  LP0'8LO‘L
¥09°0,0'8L  08L'09L°6L  €2Z9VCO'LL  6L'68L0L 186'GY0L  €860/E8
92528 €68°001 - - 92528 €68°001
8G€'L6 - 85€'L6 - - -
GTL'eS 60108 gzs'eT 66281 002'0€ 01129
9z8'L6Y 965'60 - - 9z8'16Y 965601
189201 99r'eLL - - 159°201 99r'eLL
VS LGEY 90%'650°S - - TYS'LSEY  90Y'6S0°S
896'0Z) 918'5ee 896021 8997/ - 8¥L'LSGL
860'859 v29'6Y1L°} - - 860859 v29'6YL°}
¥06'S60°'ZL $ 026'020'CL $ TLLTBL'OL § O0€T'9690L $ TEL'ELE'L § 0691ZEL $

9102 1102 9102 1102 9102 2102

|ejol SaNIAOY SaIAOY
adA] -ssauisng |BJUBWIUIBAOD)
¢ ainbi4

uonisod 39N ul sabueyn
SIlNN @3eT Jo ANo

oe adA)-ssauisng
oe adA}-ssauisng

IS

110 [EJUSWUIBA0D
198 [BJUBWILIBA0D

Jeak Jo pus - uoysod JaN

a|diound Buijunoooe ul sbueyd
juswisnipe pouad Joud

1eak
Jo Buiuuibaq - uonisod JoN
uolysod jau ul ebueyd
siajsues|
sJajsuel) a10jaq (SSO|) SWodU|

sesuadxe [ejo|
Jomag
19)BM
LIMGEE]
199p wus)-Buo| uo jsasu|
juswdojanap
pue uoneAlasuo)
uoneonpa
pue uoneaoal ‘eI
SODIAISS UBWINY PUE Y}eaH
ShIom ljgnd
Kyayes olqnd
JuBWUIOAOB [BJoUSD
:sasuadx3

SonuaAal [ejo
snoaue||aosIp
sjosse [e)den Jo ajes uo uies
awooul
JUBW)SAAUI PUE }S318)U|
sweuboud oyoads 0}
PaJoLISal JOU SaNUSASI
[eyuswuIaA0BIB)U|
soXe} Joyl0
soxe} Ayadoid
1S9NUAASI [IBUSD)
suonNqLIU0d
pue syuesb jeyde)
suonNqLUU0d
pue sjuelb Bunesado
$80IAI8S J0j sabiey)
:senuanal weiboid
SONUDARY

MOY UO SUONOLISaI [BUISIXS 0} J0[qNS a.e Jey) S80Inosal sjuasaidal (%6) uonisod jau

asay) aje

-0L-

‘pajoLIsaIUN SI L€/ 2/ '6$ JO 9oueleq Bujuiewas ay| "pasn aq Aew Aayy
IN @€ J0 A1) 8y} Jo uonod [euonippe uy

qel

0) pasn aq J0ULED SJosSE [e)idED aU) 0UIS ‘S80I JaUo Aq papioid 8q 1SN 1Gap 12y} Aedal o) papaau seoInosal

ay) ‘1qep pajejal Buipuelsino ay) Jo Jou papodai si sjesse [eyded s ul Juswisaaul S||IA 9. Jo AND ey ybnoyyly “Buipuads
21NN} 1o} S|qe|IBAE JOU BB S}]aSSE asay) ‘Aluanbasuod ‘suaziio o) seolnies apinoid o) sjasse [eydes sasn S| 9xeT Jo Al ayL

‘swa)l 9soy} a1inboe 0} panssi sem ey Buipue)sino (s Jgap paje|al Aue ssa| ‘(Juawdinba pue ‘sBuip|ing ‘sjuswanoidwi pue| ‘pue|
*B9) sjesse [ejdeo ul Juswisanul s AN ay) syoayal (%09) uondod sabie| ayy ‘JenemoH /L0Z ‘L€ Jequadaq papus Jeak |eosl auy

104 182°221$ Aq paseaour uomsod 38U SO SYL “210Z ‘L€ J9qWa0a( 40 SE 6EE*L0Z'6ZS Ad SO

el| papaadxa S|l 9¥e Jo Ao

9U} JO S}OSSE BY| "UONIPUOD [EIDUEUY SJUSWUISAOS € JO J0JEDIPUI [NJBSN SUO SE B} JOAO 9AI9S Aew uonisod Jau ‘aij1es pajou sy

208'220'6C § 6€€°102'62 $

Lov'evL've § 19.°0/2've § LOV'EL8Y $ 2.S086'Y $

uonisod Jau [ejo |

988°210'9 LeL'2lL'6 919'GEZ 99€'960't 0229 G9€'920'S pajpusalun
LeL'ozi'e ¥89'619'C ve'veL'e €61'L9L°) 681986 L€2'8¥8 pajpLIsay
581'v88'61 ¥26'TLY LL £¥5'699'61 8¥6'90v'81L vo'vie (¥20'v66) sjosse [e)ded ul Jusunsaaul JaN
:uomisod JoN
166'6.€'9 90S'82€'9 ceV'LLL 981'2s. §95°209'S 02€'9.8'S $80IN0sal JO SMOUI paLIeQ
80.'818'8C 0vZ'eL6'LE 969'86Y'LL 00126221 zio'oze'LL ovL'L8L'6L lejoL
820°L0%'L 0/6°CL€"L 981926 26L°1S8 Zy8'oey 8/1°1Zs Iqel| ;Yo
089'LLY'L2 0£2'009°0€ olg'zes'ol 80€'0V6'LL 0/1'688'9L 296'659'81L Buipuejsino
saniligel uue)-buo
116°109'C 6vC'vSh'T S9€°066 ¥5'99. CLO'LLY'L S0.°289°L $80IN0S3l JO SMOINO palidjeq
0€5'619°19 9€8'870'59 ¥91'GEY'SE 60S'870'LE 99€'¥81'92 12€'000'82 sjosse [ejo L
€69°LLY'9Y ¥9v°'2G6'9% 2€9'990'0€ 2¥9'682'0€ 190°1GE'9L 228'199'91 sjesse |ejded
2€8°102'SL $ T/E160'8L § TEG'89E'S § 198'8G.'9 $ GOE'€E8'6 $ GOS'TEELL $ Sjosse Jayjo pue jualiny
9l02 pAT4 9l0z 1102 910C pAY4
|eyoL SaIANOY
adA ] -ssauisng |EJUBILIBAOD)
Z ainbig
uonisod 19N

SIIN 8%eT Jo Auo

A-9



-¢g} -

‘G ©JON Ul punoy aq ued ygap widy-buo| s|IN axe Jo AnD ayy Buipiebal uoijewsolul jeuonippy
"0G0'6912Z$ SI SIIA 8XeT Jo AN 8y Joj wi| 1gsp [eB3| 8y "seepunoq

s Juswulanob jey} ulyim pareoo| Aladold sjgexe) Jo anjea pazijenba |ejo} ay) 4o jusoisad G 0} dn anssi
ued juawuIaAob Jo Jun e jey) igap uonebi|qo [eJausab Jo Junowe sy Jiwi| S8INJE}S UISUOISIAA JO 81elS ay |

"1gep mau 0}
anp Apewd ‘eak [eosy 1sed ay) BULNP %9°L | 10 YGE'68L'ES A PaseaIoul 1Gap (€10} SIIIN SXeT 0 AID By L

‘Buipunod 0} enp ppe jou Aew s|e}o} - S}oN

¢lv’/Z  $0090¢c § €250 g$Ovell $ 88891 §0998L § [ejoL
201’1 L1T) scl 8G 116 61T suonebiigo wisy-buoy Jsyio
S¥0°0l €29'01 S¥0'0l €29'01 - - Spuoq anusAs. abeblon
¥9z'9L  $ 10.'8L ¢ c¢s€ $ 092°) $ zi6'sL  $vvLL $ s8jou/spuoq
uonebi|qo [esousn)
910¢ /210¢ 9102 210¢ 910¢ 110¢
[B10L SOMIAOY S0A-SSoUISNg SONIAIY [BJUSWUISA0D

(sJe|jop jo spuesnouy} ui)
G 2inbi4
suonebiqo wia1-6uo s|iIN axeT jo Ao

‘sjjouaq a9Aojdws pue (Spuoq anuaAal ‘a°1) S82IN0S

anuanal payoads Ag A|9|os paindas spuog anuanal abebuow syuasaidal jgap s,AlD 8y} Jo Japulewsal

8yl “AnQ 8uy Jo IpaIo pue uiey [Ny 8Yl Aq paxoeq 19ep SI 0L0'EEZ'8LS ‘SIUNIO "022°009°0€$ Jo Buipuejsino
suonebiqo wis)-Buoy [e10) pey s||IA 84eT 4o AlD 8u) ‘/ 10z ‘LS Jequisde( Jo Sy :suonebiiqo wua)-buo
'SjusWale)S [EIOUBUI4 Diseq 8U} JO ¢ 9JON Ul punoy ag ued sjasse |ejided s.A)1D ay} JO uolewloul [euonippy

‘Buipuno. 0} 8np ppe jou Aew s|ejo} - 80N

8lP9F $/G69F § Z900¢ $06¢c0c § 1GE9L $ 89991 $ [e3oL

(2er’Ze) (0veee) 919°02)  (890¢2) 91691 (2ZV'Z1) uoneroaidep
paje|nWNooY :Ssa7

£v0'cl Gges'el - - €vo'el Gges'el ainjonuselyu|

vev' Ly 89G'6Y 1G68°LY 126'sy 19G'G LY9'S swasAs pue juswdinby

67581 8098l LgL LLEL 8eZ'LlL 962°LL sbuipjing

G€6 GE6 €8¢ €8¢ €65 €65 Sjuswanoidwi pue

€82'C YA A 1€0°L 9€9 2seL zLo'L ssaib01d Ul uoponsUOY
yie'L $ vie'L $ 10l $ 10l $ viz'L $ vicL $ pueT
910¢ /10¢ 910¢ /102 910¢ /10
TB101 SOMIAOY 90A-SSeUlsNy  ~ SONIAIDY [EJUSWUISA0D)

(sJejjop jo spuesnoyy ui)
 ainbi4
sjessy |eyded s|lIIN e jo Ao

-21-

‘salAloe adAy
-sSauISNg Ul G86'901‘2$ Jo saseyaind juswdinba pue G| ‘701 $ jo ssaiboid uj uononisuo) e
‘saniAloe adAl-eluswiulienob ul ainjonuiseljul Jo 962°L8Y$ PUB | 69°992$ JO seseyaind
juswdinbe ‘2z1‘€Z1$ Jo syuswanosdwi Buip|ing ‘g2 L0¥$ Jo sseiboid ul uononnsuo) e

suonippe
Buimoljo} 8y} apnjoul Jeak ayy Buunp suonoesuel; Jasse |ejded Jofely "ainjonliselul pue ‘yuswdinbs
‘sBuip|ing ‘sjuswanoidwi pue| ‘ssaifold uj uoONIISUOD ‘pue| BPN|OUI S}asse asay ) “(uoleloaidap
paje|nWNOoE JO J8U) $9%* /G6'91$ SIEIO} /102 ‘L€ Joquasaq Jo Se safiAloe adAy-ssauisng

pue |[ejuawuianob sy oy sjosse |ejded ul Juswisanul S||IN 3. Jo AjD 8yl :s)assy |eyde)

uonesISIUIWPY jqaq pue jessy [epded

‘saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng S|lI|N 97 JO AlID 8U} JO UOISSNISIP 8y} Ul passaiIppe uaaq Apealle aney
spuny 921y} 8say} Jo Saoueul 8y} Buluiaduod siojoey Jayl0 “AleAioadsal (266°G0€)$ PUe (€171'€2)$
',9%'05¥$ sem uomyisod jau ur abueyo (€30} 8yL /.y 88$ 0} pajunowe AN Jemas ey 1oy asoy)
pue ‘(£28289)$ Palelo} Aunn Jajep du) ‘'99/ '68°€$ O} pajunowe Jeak [easy auj Jo pud auj Je AN
21199|3 9y} Jo uonisod Jau pPajoL}SaIUN “[IE}OP SI0W Ul INg SjUSWS)e)S SpIM-)uswulanob sy ul punoy
uofewlojul jo adA} swes ayy apiroid spuny Ateyaudold s|jilN 8XeT Jo AN 8yl - spun4 Aiejauudolad

'S9OIAISS UlBjUlEW 0} AIBSS929U 8W093q ey} suoieldoidde up saseasoul (¢ pue ‘sjuelb ajels

pUE |eJopa4 SE YoNns ‘S80IN0s [eUIB)X8 WOl sjunowe Buipuny mau 8z1ubooal 0) apew sjuswpuswe (g
‘a|ge|ieA. S| UOIBWIOUI JOBXS 90UO doueUIpIO }96png jeulbuo sy aiedaid 0} pasn ale jey) sejewnss
ay} 1snlpe 0} epew sjuswpuawe (| :sal0ba)ed 931y} JO SUO OJUI ||B} Sjuswpuswe }bBpng ‘A||eJsuss)
196pnq 8y} asiAal jou pip A0 ay) ‘4eak |eosy sy Buling - sybiybiH Ateyabpng pun4 jeiausn

'spuny Juswimopus Aseliqi| pue a1ed [enjodiad Alsyewad yuelb ¥o0|q Ayunwiwod

‘sjuswanosdwi yied ‘Aieiqi ‘syosfoud |eydes ‘puny |esauab sy ul 8duejeq puny Ul SBSEaIOU| SIe
@oueleq puny Ul aBueyd siy) Ul papnjou| “Jeak ise| Jono asealoul Juadiad g B ‘Z9G° L2/ G$ Jo oueleq
puny paulquiod e pauodal s|jIjAl 8. Jo AlID 8y) Jo spuny [eyuswulanob ayy ‘210z ‘L€ Jequiedeq IV

‘Junowe awes jey} Jo yusoiad

0G sjuasaidal aoueleq puny [ejo} d|Iym ‘sainjipuadxa pun4 [eJauas) [ejo} Jo Jusdlad ¢/ ¢ sjuasaidal
aoue|eq puny paubisseun "sainypuadxa puny |ejo) 0} 8dueleq puny [Bj0} pue aduejeq puny paubisseun
yjoq asedwod o} |njasn aq Aew 1 ‘Aupinbi| s,puny [eiouab ay) Jo ainseaw e sy ‘€Z6°€09'v$ payoeal
9oueleq puny [BJ0) 9|IUM ‘€EV P €S SEM pund [BJoUSD 8y} JO 8dueleq pun) paubisseun ‘Jesk

|BOSI} JUBLIND Y} JO PUS dY} Iy “S|IIIN 8 ET 40 AND 8y} jo puny Bunesado jaiyd auy st puny jesauab ay |

“Jeak |eosly 8y} Jo

pua 8y} je Buipuads Joj a|ge|leAB $821N0S8I }U S JUBWUIBAOD B Jo 8inseaw |nyesn e ag ued adueleq
puny pauBisseun ‘Ajleoyoads ‘syuswaiinbal Buoueuly S| 8xeT Jo AN ay) Buissasse ul |njasn

S| UOI}BWIOJUI YONG "SSOIN0SBI B|gesn JO S8oUB(Eq PUB ‘SMOJINO ‘SMOJJUl WIS}-IESU UO Uoljewloul
apinold o} si spuny [ejuswiulanob S||I|N 8.7 JO AIID B} JO SNO0) 8Y] - SPUNZ |[EJUBWUIBIA0D

‘sjuswalinbal [eba| paje|al-aoueul YiIm
8oueldwoo sjesjsuowap pue ainsus o} Buunoooe puny sasn s|iy 84e Jo AlID 8y} Jsiiies pajou sy

spung s, A)9 ay} jo sisfjeuy |eloueuly

A-10



-yl -

2E9L-1GGES

UISUODSIAA ‘SIIIIN @3 ‘198418 Jale d 002 ‘SIIIN @3eT 40 AD 10joalig @oueul4/1ainseal] 8y} 0} pajoallp 8q
p|nNoys uonewoul [euolippe Joj sisenbal 1o podad siy} ul punoy uopewloul 8y} Jo Aue Bujuieouoo suopsend
‘BOJE SIY) Ul }S8IB)UI UB Y)IM 8SO0U} 10} seoueuly s, A0 8y} J0 MaIAIBAO ue apiaoid 0} paubisep si podad siy |

uonjewioyu| 1o sysanbay

A-11



CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts and other
Special assessments
Interest
Loans
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets
Cash and investments

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Charge on refunding
Wisconsin Retirement System pension
OPEB supplemental pension

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Payroll, payroll taxes
Interest
Other
Current portion of long-term obligations
Payable from restricted assets
Accrued revenue bond interest
Current portion of revenue loans
Unearned revenue - other
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - tax roll
Unavailable revenue - special assessments
Wisconsin Retirement System pension
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Permanent funds - nonexpendable
Debt service

Other activities
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
7,814,094 $ 1,734,030 $ 9,548,124
2,865,382 - 2,865,382
816,463 782,443 1,598,906
37,489 541,675 579,164
- 11,329 11,329
176,133 - 176,133
(481,139) 481,139 -
48,166 - 48,166
- 268,384 268,384
55,917 - 55,917
- 2,939,867 2,939,867
2,825,174 736,680 3,561,854
13,842,648 29,552,962 43,395,610
28,000,327 37,048,509 65,048,836
156,587 269,808 426,395
1,218,700 496,736 1,715,436
312,418 - 312,418
1,687,705 766,544 2,454,249
29,688,032 37,815,053 67,503,085
314,669 572,524 887,193
41,964 175,441 217,405
164,545 - 164,545
- 27,621 27,621
1,931,126 577,118 2,508,244
- 59,590 59,590
- 639,889 639,889
- 16,616 16,616
16,728,836 10,723,301 27,452,137
19,181,140 12,792,100 31,973,240
4,990,689 - 4,990,689
- 513,485 513,485
585,631 238,701 824,332
5,576,320 752,186 6,328,506
(994,024) 18,406,948 17,412,924
356,512 - 356,512
- 1,088,168 1,088,168
491,719 679,285 1,171,004
5,076,365 4,096,366 9,172,731
4,930,572 24,270,767 29,201,339
29,688,032 $ 37,815,053 $ 67,503,085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

TOTAL
NONMAJOR TOTAL
GENERAL CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 5,854,454 $ 739,707 $ 1,219,933 § 7,814,094
Receivables
Taxes 1,962,750 895,684 6,948 2,865,382
Accounts and other 808,856 6,278 1,329 816,463
Special assessments 37,489 - - 37,489
Loan - - 176,133 176,133
Due from other funds 656,662 - 509,405 1,166,067
Due from other governments - - 48,166 48,166
Prepaid expenses 55,917 - - 55,917
Advances to other funds 703,433 - - 703,433
TOTAL ASSETS 10,079,561 1,641,669 1,961,914 13,683,144
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 242,880 61,941 - 304,821
Accrued payroll liabilities 41,964 - - 41,964
Due to other funds 1,055,401 - 591,805 1,647,206
Due to other governments 9,848 - - 9,848
Unearned revenue - other - - 176,133 176,133
Advances from other funds - 703,433 - 703,433
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,350,093 765,374 767,938 2,883,405
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - tax roll 4,088,057 895,684 6,948 4,990,689
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 37,488 - - 37,488
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 4,125,545 895,684 6,948 5,028,177
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 759,350 - 532,645 1,291,995
Committed 400,140 - - 400,140
Assigned - - 762,449 762,449
Unassigned 3,444,433 (19,389) (108,066) 3,316,978
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,603,923 (19,389) 1,187,028 5,771,562
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 10,079,561 $ 1,641,669 $ 1,961,914
Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
from the amount reported above as total governmental funds fund balance because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the fund statements. Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are:
Governmental capital asset 33,839,950
Governmental accumulated depreciation (17,172,128) 16,667,822
Some revenues are unavailable in the funds because they are not available to pay
current period's expenditures:
Special assessments to be collected after year end 37,488
Other unearned revenue to be collected after year end 176,133 213,621
Wisconsin Retirement System asset, deferred inflows of resources, and
deferred outflows of resources are not current financial resources and are
not reported in fund statements. 633,069
Other post employment benefits deferred inflows of resources and deferred
outflows of resources are not current financial resources and are not
reported in fund statements. 312,418
Long term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the fund statements. Long term liabilities reported
in the statement of net position that are not reported in the funds balance sheet are:
General obligation debt (17,440,754)
Accrued interest on general obligation debt (164,545)
Charge on refunding 156,587
Premium (377,679)
Vested employee benefits (257,554)
WRS liability (141,350)
Net OPEB obligation (442,625) (18,667,920)
Total net position - governmental activities $ 4,930,572

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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REVENUE
Taxes
Special assessment
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeits and penalties
Public charges for services

Intergovernmental charges for services
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Other
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out
Issuance of long-term debt
Premium on long-term debt

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

TOTAL

NONMAJOR TOTAL
GENERAL CAPITAL  GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL

FUND PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
$ 4,000,799 $ 1,172,246 $ - S 5,173,045
- - 109,031 109,031
1,694,839 10,941 20,577 1,726,357
148,573 - - 148,573
66,155 - - 66,155
154,636 - 376,923 531,559
340,994 - - 340,994
367,240 7,602 28,565 403,407
6,773,236 1,190,789 535,096 8,499,121
1,017,146 - - 1,017,146
1,601,364 - - 1,601,364
1,122,967 - 360,500 1,483,467
138,506 - - 138,506
704,343 - 4,547 708,890
273,588 - 335 273,923
1,050,137 581,326 - 1,631,463
275,575 160,813 - 436,388
78,059 - - 78,059
2,964,307 141,869 118,918 3,225,094
9,225,992 884,008 484,300 10,594,300
(2,452,756) 306,781 50,796 (2,095,179)
532,878 - - 532,878
- - (3,747) (3,747)
3,160,000 - - 3,160,000
58,970 - - 58,970
3,751,848 - (3,747) 3,748,101
1,299,092 306,781 47,049 1,652,922
3,304,831 (326,170) 1,139,979 4,118,640
$ 4603923 $ (19,389) $ 1,187,028 $ 5,771,562

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,652,922

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

The acquisition of capital assets are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures.
However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement of net position
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expense in the
statement of activities.

Capital outlay reported in governmental fund statements $ 3,225,094
Capital outlay not capitalized (1,946,238)
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities (887,260)
Less cost of assets disposed (74,835)
Amount by which capital outlays are greater than depreciation in the current period: 316,761

Some capital assets acquired during the year were financed with loans. The amount of the

loans are reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing. In the statement of

net position however, loans are not reported as a financing source, but rather constitute a

long-term liability. The amount of loans reported in the governmental funds statement is: (3,160,000)

Certain employee benefits are reported in the governmental funds when amounts are paid.
The statement of activities reports the value of benefits earned during the year.

This year the accrual of these benefits decreased by: 57,714

Wisconsin Retirement System asset, deferred inflows of resources, liability and deferred
outflows of resources changes: (140,717)

OPEB supplemental pension deferred outflows of resources, liability, and deferred inflows of
resources changes: (130,207)

Certain revenues are deferred in the governmental funds because they are not available to

pay current period expenditures. In the statement of activities these are recorded as

revenue in the current year:
New special assessment revenue recognized in the statement of activities (115,505)
Other unearned revenue recognized in the statement of activities (19,107)

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the governmental funds as an
expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt in the statement of net position
and does not affect the statement of activities.

The amount of long-term debt principal payments in the current year is: 1,631,463

In governmental funds interest payments on outstanding debt are reported as an
expenditure when paid. In the statement of activities interest is reported as it accrues.

The amount of interest and other debt costs paid during the current period 455,477

The amount of interest and other debt costs accrued during the current period (492,392)

Interest paid is less than interest accrued by: (36,915)
Change in net position - governmental activities $ 56,409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
Special assessment receivable
Interest receivable
Due from other funds

Inventories
RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash and investments
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
NET CAPITAL ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OR RESOURCES
Charge on refunding
Wisconsin Retirement System pension
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Payroll
Interest
Other

Due to other funds

Current portion of long-term obligations

PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest
Current portion of long-term obligations

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Unearned revenue - other
Long-term obligations
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - special assessments
Wisconsin Retirement System pension
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service

Restricted for other
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

ELECTRIC WATER SEWER
UTILITY UTILITY UTILITY TOTAL
$ 924,093 $ -3 809,937 $ 1,734,030
549,939 99,943 132,561 782,443
- 207,118 334,557 541,675
- - 11,329 11,329
1,439,063 588,311 392,333 2,419,707
254,558 13,826 - 268,384
1,868,168 244,458 827,241 2,939,867
5,035,821 1,153,656 2,507,958 8,697,435
279,745 241,427 215,508 736,680
13,977,613 6,777,116 8,798,233 29,552,962
14,257,358 7,018,543 9,013,741 30,289,642
19,293,179 8,172,199 11,521,699 38,987,077
238,683 31,125 - 269,808
255,386 118,719 122,631 496,736
494,069 149,844 122,631 766,544
19,787,248 8,322,043 11,644,330 39,753,621
431,518 67,551 73,455 572,524
93,134 32,013 53,505 178,652
1,006 - - 1,006
24,410 - - 24,410
391,783 1,432,938 113,847 1,938,568
48,400 - - 48,400
37,048 15,560 5,976 58,584
471,459 591,741 105,407 1,168,607
1,498,758 2,139,803 352,190 3,990,751
16,616 - - 16,616
8,003,764 2,367,893 351,644 10,723,301
8,020,380 2,367,893 351,644 10,739,917
9,519,138 4,507,696 703,834 14,730,668
- 207,118 306,367 513,485
122,723 57,049 58,929 238,701
122,723 264,167 365,296 752,186
5,763,356 4,072,679 8,570,913 18,406,948
384,223 103,789 600,156 1,088,168
103,042 56,589 519,654 679,285
3,894,766 (682,877) 884,477 4,096,366
10,145,387 3,550,180 10,575,200 24,270,767
$ 19,787,248 $ 8322043 $ 11,644,330 $ 39,753,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
Maintenance
General and administrative
Depreciation
Taxes

TOTAL OPERATING
EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
Amortization
Other

TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

OPERATING TRANSFER IN (OUT)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION END OF YEAR

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

ELECTRIC WATER SEWER
UTILITY UTILITY UTILITY TOTAL

7,978,355 $ 1,144,395 $ 1,543,700 10,666,450
5,282,289 142,050 338,299 5,762,638
326,448 243,984 369,526 939,958
547,793 355,515 642,107 1,545,415
691,778 215,757 490,605 1,398,140
74,259 18,566 26,823 119,648
6,922,567 975,872 1,867,360 9,765,799
1,055,788 168,523 (323,660) 900,651
8,027 1,029 9,243 18,299
(260,249) (69,982) (16,472) (346,703)
(20,755) (2,706) - (23,461)
(4,084) - - (4,084)
(277,061) (71,659) (7,229) (355,949)
778,727 96,864 (330,889) 544,702
(361,792) (161,143) (6,196) (529,131)
33,532 41,136 31,133 105,801
450,467 (23,143) (305,952) 121,372
9,694,920 3,573,323 10,881,152 24,149,395
10,145,387 $ 3,550,180 $ 10,575,200 $ 24,270,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts from (payments to) municipality
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments for employees for services
Payments for employee benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to governmental funds

Net cash (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Receipt of developer's fees

Issue of bonds and loans

Retirement of bonds and loans

Wisconsin Retirement System pension
Charge on refunding

Interest and amortization paid

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Reconciliation of cash to balance sheet

Cash
Restricted cash and investments

Total cash on cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash flows from operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows WRS pension
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows - WRS pension

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

ELECTRIC WATER SEWER

UTILITY UTILITY UTILITY TOTAL
$ 7277478 $ 749661 $ 1485443 $ 9,512,582
373,394 31,345 71,954 476,693
(5,986,608) (388,108) (754,151) (7,128,867)
(182,418) (214,762) (386,492) (783,672)
(106,691) (90,434) (144,044) (341,169)
1,375,155 87,702 272,710 1,735,567
(361,792) (161,143) (6,196) (529,131)
(361,792) (161,143) (6,196) (529,131)
(777,072) (444,638) (399,440) (1,621,150)
33,532 41,136 31,133 105,801
1,639,000 484,000 - 2,123,000
(301,680) (163,654) (172,061) (637,395)
(38,028) (12,905) (16,874) (67,807)
20,755 2,706 - 23,461
(276,069) (69,654) (18,334) (364,057)
300,438 (163,009) (575,576) (438,147)
8,027 1,029 9,243 18,299
8,027 1,029 9,243 18,299
1,321,828 (235,421) (299,819) 786,588
1,470,433 479,879 1,936,997 3,887,309
$ 2792261 $ 244458 $ 1,637,178 $ 4,673,897
$ 924,093 $ -3 809,937 $ 1,734,030
1,868,168 244,458 827,241 2,939,867
$ 2792261 $ 244458 $ 1,637,178 $ 4,673,897
$ 1055788 $ 168523 $ (323,660) $ 900,651
691,778 215,757 490,605 1,398,140
4,101 (17,445) (24,389) (37,733)
(211,698) (521,830) - (733,528)
78,389 (7,346) - 71,043
120,610 29,543 50,207 200,360
(235,967) 40,859 61,113 (133,995)
(121,585) 175,886 38,086 92,387
12,737 2,844 (12,738) 2,843
(1,054) - - (1,054)
1,699 - - 1,699
(19,643) 911 (6,514) (25,246)
319,367 (80,821) 596,370 834,916
$ 1375155 $ 87,702 §$ 272,710 $ 1,735,567

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

AGENCY FUND

PROPERTY TAX
ASSETS
Cash $ 3,900,089
Taxes receivable 3,543,242
TOTAL ASSETS 7,443,331
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 7,443,331
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 7,443,331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Re:

Quarles & Brady LLP
411 East Wisconsin Avenue
Milwaukee, W1 53202
June 27, 2019

City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin ("Issuer™)

$2,385,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B,

dated June 27, 2019 ("Bonds")

We have acted as bond counsel to the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds. In such capacity, we have examined such law and such certified proceedings,
certifications, and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion.

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on the certified
proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without

undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

The Bonds are numbered from R-1 and upward; bear interest at the rates set forth below;
and mature on May 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as follows:

Year

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039

Principal Amount

$ 95,000
120,000
125,000
125,000
135,000
135,000
135,000
140,000
140,000
145,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
105,000
105,000
110,000
115,000
115,000
120,000
120,000

Interest Rate

%

Interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year commencing on May

1, 2020.

D-2
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The Bonds maturing on May 1, 2029 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to
maturity, at the option of the Issuer, on May 1, 2028 or on any date thereafter. Said Bonds are
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Issuer, and within
each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

[The Bonds maturing in the years are subject to mandatory
redemption by lot as provided in the Certificate Approving the Details of the Bonds, at the

redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and without premium.]

We further certify that we have examined a sample of the Bonds and find the same to be
in proper form.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, it is our opinion under existing law that:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the Issuer and are valid
and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All the taxable property in the territory of the Issuer is subject to the levy of ad
valorem taxes to pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds, without limitation as to rate or
amount. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest
coming due on the Bonds except to the extent that necessary funds have been irrevocably
deposited into the debt service fund account established for the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Bonds.

3. The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the
gross income of the owners of the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code™) on individuals. The Code contains
requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest
on the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the
Bonds to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The
Issuer has agreed to comply with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first
sentence of this paragraph is subject to the condition that the Issuer comply with those
requirements. We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with
respect to the Bonds.

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official
Statement or any other offering material relating to the Bonds. Further, we express no opinion
regarding tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds other than as expressly set forth
herein.

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights
and may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of
equity, whether considered at law or in equity.

QB\57799177.1
D-3



This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our
attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.

QUARLES & BRADY LLP

QB\57799177.1
D-4



APPENDIX C
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the securities
(the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of
[any] issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal
amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New Y ork
Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New Y ork Uniform Commercial Code,
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's
participants ("Direct Participants'") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable
to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can
be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.
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10.

I1.

12.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request
that copies of notices be provided directly to them.]

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent,
on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants
to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the City or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant,
to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to
transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The
requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will
be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [ Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not

obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources
that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and
delivered by the City of Lake Mills, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer™) in connection
with the issuance of $2,385,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B,
dated June 27, 2019 (the "Securities™). The Securities are being issued pursuant to resolutions
adopted on May 7, 2019 and June 18, 2019, as supplemented by a Certificate Approving the
Details of General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B (collectively, the
"Resolution™) and delivered to (the "Purchaser") on the date
hereof. Pursuant to the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to provide continuing
disclosure of certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the
occurrence of certain events. In addition, the Issuer hereby specifically covenants and agrees as
follows:

Section 1(a). Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to
assist the Participating Underwriters within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in
complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). References in this Disclosure Certificate to holders of
the Securities shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities. This Disclosure Certificate
constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule.

Section 1(b). Filing Requirements. Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate must be
made solely by transmitting such filing to the MSRB (defined herein) through the Electronic
Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") System at www.emma.msrb.org in the format prescribed
by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by the identifying
information prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Audited Financial Statements™ means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are
currently prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in substantially the same form.

"Final Official Statement” means the Final Official Statement dated June 20, 2019
delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the MSRB.

"Financial Obligation™ means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt
obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term Financial Obligation shall not include
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municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB
consistent with the Rule.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer.

"Governing Body" means the City Council of the Issuer or such other body as may
hereafter be the chief legislative body of the Issuer.

"Issuer" means the City of Lake Mills, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, which is the
obligated person with respect to the Securities.

"Issuer Contact™ means the City Treasurer/Finance Director of the Issuer who can be
contacted at 200 D Water Street, Lake Mills, Wisconsin 53551, phone (920) 648-2344, fax (920)
648-2347.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities
(including the Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the
Securities.

"Rule" means SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and official
interpretations thereof.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements.

@) The Issuer shall, not later than 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year,
commencing with the year ended December 31, 2018, provide the MSRB with an Annual Report
filed in accordance with Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate and which is consistent with
the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report may be
submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-
reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that
the Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of
the Annual Report and that, if Audited Financial Statements are not available within 365 days
after the end of the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial information will be provided, and Audited
Financial Statements will be submitted to the MSRB when and if available.

(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the
date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to the
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MSRB in the format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

Section 4. Content of Annual Report. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the Audited Financial Statements and updates of the following sections
of the Final Official Statement to the extent such financial information and operating data are not
included in the Audited Financial Statements:

1. DEBT - Direct Debt

2. DEBT - Debt Limit

3. VALUATIONS - Current Property Valuations

4. TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS - Tax Levies and Collections

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities,
which are available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet website or filed with the SEC. The
Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Listed Events.

€)) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events with respect to the Securities:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

4, Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of
the Securities, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Securities;

7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities, if material;
8. Securities calls, if material, and tender offers;
9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Securities, if
material;
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11. Rating changes;
12.  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;

13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;

14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material;

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect holders of the Securities, if
material; and

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of the Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

For the purposes of the event identified in subsection (a)12. above, the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent
or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an
order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer.

(b) When a Listed Event occurs, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of
ten business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event, file a notice of such occurrence with
the MSRB. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)
(8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the
underlying event is given to holders of affected Securities pursuant to the Resolution.

(©) Unless otherwise required by law, the Issuer shall submit the information in the
format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under the
Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all the Securities.
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Section 7. Issuer Contact; Agent. Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.
Additionally, the Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist
it in carrying out its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution
or this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if the following conditions are met:

(@)(i) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances
that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature,
or status of the Issuer, or the type of business conducted; or

(if) This Disclosure Certificate, as amended or waived, would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of beneficial
owners of the Securities, as determined and certified to the Issuer by an underwriter, financial
advisor, bond counsel or trustee.

In the event this Disclosure Certificate is amended for any reason other than to cure any
ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the Issuer
agrees the next Annual Report it submits after such amendment shall include an explanation of
the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of financial
statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an event notice and that the next
Annual Report it submits after such amendment will include a comparison between financial
statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those
prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event,
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have
no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.
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Section 10. Default. (a) Except as described in the Final Official Statement, in the
previous five years, the Issuer has not failed to comply in all material respects with any previous
undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of events.

(b) In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate any holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary
and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate. A
default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to
the Securities and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of
the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and
shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities
effective the 27th day of June, 2019.

Steven Wilke
City Manager
(SEAL)

Melissa Quest
City Clerk
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APPENDIX E
NOTICE OF SALE

$2,385,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2019B
CITY OF LAKE MILLS, WISCONSIN

Bids for the purchase of $2,385,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B (the "Bonds") of the City of
Lake Mills, Wisconsin (the "City") will be received at the offices of Ehlers and Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"), 3060 Centre Pointe
Drive, Roseville, Minnesota 55113-1105, municipal advisors to the City, until 10:30 A.M., Central Time, and ELECTRONIC
PROPOSALS will be received via PARITY, in the manner described below, until 10:30 A.M. Central Time, on June 19, 2019,
at which time they will be opened, read and tabulated. The City Council will adopt a resolution on June 18, 2019, (the
“Parameters Resolution”) which authorizes the City Manager or Treasurer/Finance Director to accept a bid for the Bonds
if the parameters and conditions set forth in the Parameters Resolution are satisfied. If the parameters and conditions set
forth in the Parameters Resolution are not met through the competitive bids received on June 19, 2019, neither the City
Manager nor Treasurer/Finance Director will have the authority to accept a bid for the Bonds, and all bids for the Bonds
will be rejected.

PURPOSE

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, for the public purposes of financing street improvement
projects; sewerage projects; water system projects; and community development projects in the City’s Tax Incremental District
No. 5. The Bonds are general obligations of the City, and all the taxable property in the City is subject to the levy of a tax to pay
the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as
to rate or amount.

DATES AND MATURITIES

The Bonds will be dated June 27, 2019, will be issued as fully registered Bonds in the denomination of $5,000 each, or any
integral multiple thereof, and will mature on May 1 as follows:

Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*
2020 $95,000 2027 $140,000 2034 $105,000
2021 120,000 2028 140,000 2035 110,000
2022 125,000 2029 145,000 2036 115,000
2023 125,000 2030 100,000 2037 115,000
2024 135,000 2031 100,000 2038 120,000
2025 135,000 2032 100,000 2039 120,000
2026 135,000 2033 105,000
ADJUSTMENT OPTION

* The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale, in increments of $5,000
each, up to a maximum of $65,000 per maturity. Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity. If any principal amounts
are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000.

TERM BOND OPTION
Bids for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for any combination of serial bonds and term bonds, subject to

mandatory redemption, so long as the amount of principal maturing or subject to mandatory redemption in each year conforms
to the maturity schedule set forth above. All dates are inclusive.
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INTEREST PAYMENT DATES AND RATES

Interest will be payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2020, to the registered owners of the Bonds
appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
immediately preceding month. Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be
rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The rate for any maturity may not be more than
2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity. (For example, if a rate of 4.50% is proposed for the 2025 maturity,
then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity is 2.50%.) All Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest
from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate. Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY FORMAT

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Bonds will be designated in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds, and will be
responsible for maintaining a book-entry system for recording the interests of its participants and the transfers of interests between
its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial interests of the individual
purchasers of the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, all payments of principal and interest will
be made to the depository which, in turn, will be obligated to remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement
to the beneficial owners of the Bonds.

PAYING AGENT

The City may select a bank or trust company to act as paying agent (the "Paying Agent"). If an outside Paying Agent firm is
retained, the City will pay the charges for Paying Agent services. The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to
appoint a successor.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, the Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2029 shall be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity
on May 1, 2028 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment. If redemption is in part, the selection of the amounts
and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City. If only part of the Bonds having a common
maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify DTC of the particular amount of such
maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and
each participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic transmission, overnight
delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for
redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books.

DELIVERY

On or about June 27, 2019, the Bonds will be delivered without cost to the winning bidder at DTC. On the day of closing, the
City will furnish to the winning bidder the opinion of bond counsel hereinafter described, an arbitrage certification, and certificates
verifying that no litigation in any manner questioning the validity of the Bonds is then pending or, to the best knowledge of officers
of the City, threatened. Payment for the Bonds must be received by the City at its designated depository on the date of closing
in immediately available funds.

LEGAL OPINION

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be furnished by
Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, and will be available at the time of delivery of the Bonds. The legal opinion
will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the City;
provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied
in either a legal or equitable proceeding).
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STATEMENT REGARDING BOND COUNSEL PARTICIPATION
Bond Counsel has not assumed responsibility for this Preliminary Official Statement or participated in its preparation (except with
respect to the section entitled “TAX EXEMPTION" in the Preliminary Official Statement and the “FORM OF LEGAL OPINION"
found in Appendix B of the Preliminary Official Statement).
SUBMISSION OF BIDS
Bids must not be for less than $2,355,187 nor more than $2,528,100 plus accrued interest on the principal sum of $2,385,000 from
date of original issue of the Bonds to date of delivery. Prior to the time established above for the opening of bids, interested

parties may submit a bid as follows:

1) Electronically to bondsale@ehlers-inc.com; or

2) Electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Notice of Sale until 10:30 A.M. Central Time, but no bid will be
received after the time for receiving bids specified above. To the extent any instructions or directions set forth in
PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall control. For further information about
PARITY, potential bidders may contact Ehlers or i-Deal LLC at 1359 Broadway, 2™ Floor, New York, New York
10018, Telephone (212) 849-5021.

Bids must be submitted to Ehlers via one of the methods described above and must be received prior to the time established above
for the opening of bids. Each bid must be unconditional except as to legality. Neither the City nor Ehlers shall be responsible
for any failure to receive a facsimile submission.

A good faith deposit (""Deposit") in the amount of $47,700 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire transfer of funds.
Such Deposit shall be received by Ehlers no later than two hours after the bid opening time. Wire transfer instructions
will be provided to the winning bidder by Ehlers after the tabulation of bids. The City reserves the right to award the Bonds
to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is initiated but not received by such time provided that such winning bidder’s federal wire
reference number has been received by such time. In the event the Deposit is not received as provided above, the City may award
the Bonds to the bidder submitting the next best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award. The Deposit will be retained by
the City as liquidated damages if the bid is accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply therewith.

The City and the winning bidder who chooses to so wire the Deposit hereby agree irrevocably that Ehlers shall be the escrow
holder of the Deposit wired to such account subject only to these conditions and duties: 1) All income earned thereon shall be
retained by the escrow holder as payment for its expenses; 2) If the bid is not accepted, Ehlers shall, at its expense, promptly return
the Deposit amount to the winning bidder; 3) If the bid is accepted, the Deposit shall be returned to the winning bidder at the
closing; 4) Ehlers shall bear all costs of maintaining the escrow account and returning the funds to the winning bidder; 5) Ehlers
shall not be an insurer of the Deposit amount and shall have no liability hereunder except if it willfully fails to perform or
recklessly disregards, its duties specified herein; and 6) FDIC insurance on deposits within the escrow account shall be limited
to $250,000 per bidder.

No bid can be withdrawn after the time set for receiving bids.
AWARD

The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a True Interest Cost (TIC) basis.
The City’s computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with customary practice, will be controlling. In the event
of a tie, the sale of the Bonds will be awarded by lot. The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any
informality in any bid. The Bonds will not be awarded if the TIC (taking the purchaser’s compensation into
account) exceeds 3.75% or if the other conditions set forth in the Parameters Resolution are not satisfied.
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BOND INSURANCE

If the Bonds are qualified for any bond insurance policy, the purchase of such policy shall be at the sole option and expense of
the winning bidder. Any cost for such insurance policy is to be paid by the winning bidder, except that, if the City requested and
received a rating on the Bonds from a rating agency, the City will pay that rating fee. Any rating agency fees not requested by
the City are the responsibility of the winning bidder.

Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Bonds are awarded to the winning bidder shall not constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to accept delivery of the Bonds.

CUSIP NUMBERS

The City will assume no obligation for the assignment or printing of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds or for the correctness of any
numbers printed thereon, but will permit such numbers to be printed at the expense of the winning bidder, if the winning bidder
waives any delay in delivery occasioned thereby.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will designate the Bonds as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the City will enter into an undertaking for the benefit of the holders of
the Bonds. A description of the details and terms of the undertaking is set forth in Appendix D of the Preliminary Official
Statement.

NEW ISSUE PRICING

The winning bidder will be required to provide, in a timely manner, certain information necessary to compute the yield on the
Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to provide a certificate which will be
provided by Bond Counsel upon request.

(a) The winning bidder shall assist the City in establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the
City at closing an "issue price" or similar certificate satisfactory to Bond Counsel setting forth the reasonably expected initial
offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent
communications. All actions to be taken by the City under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Bonds may be
taken on behalf of the City by the City’s municipal advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the City
may be provided to the City’s municipal advisor.

(b) The City intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining "competitive sale" for
purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the "competitive sale

requirements") because:

(N The City shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed
to reach potential investors;

2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the City may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have established industry
reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and

4) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds
at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.
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Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds, as specified in
this bid.

(c) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied, the City shall advise the winning bidder of such fact
prior to the time of award of the sale of the Bonds to the winning bidder. In such event, any bid submitted will not be subject to
cancellation or withdrawal and the City agrees to use the rule selected by the winning bidder on its bid form to determine the issue
price for the Bonds. On its bid form, each bidder must select one of the following two rules for determining the issue price of the
Bonds: (1) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the "10% test") is sold to the public as the issue price of that
maturity or (2) the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date as the issue price of each maturity of the Bonds (the "hold-
the-offering-price rule").

(d) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied and the winning bidder selects the hold-the-offering-
price rule, the winning bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters have offered or will offer the Bonds to the public on or before
the date of award at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering price"), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in
the bid submitted by the winning bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in the purchase of the Bonds,
that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of any maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply
to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and
ending on the earlier of the following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale date; or

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that
is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.

The winning bidder will advise the City promptly after the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale whether it has sold
10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.

The City acknowledges that in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder will rely on:

(1) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including,
but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set forth in an agreement
among underwriters and the related pricing wires,

(i1) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the
agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of
the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds,
as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and

(iii) in the event that an underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling group is a party to a third-party distribution
agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer
that is party to such agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited
to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set forth in the third-party
distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The City further acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable
for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the requirements for establishing issue price rule of the Bonds, including,
but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, and that no underwriter
shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer
that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements
for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price
rule as applicable to the Bonds.

(e) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied and the winning bidder selects the 10% test, the winning
bidder agrees to promptly report to the City, Bond Counsel and Ehlers the prices at which the Bonds have been sold to the public.
That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing date has occurred, until either (i) all Bonds of that maturity
have been sold or (ii) the 10% test has been satisfied as to each maturity of the Bonds, provided that, the winning bidder’s
reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the City or bond
counsel.

) By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that:
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(1) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each third-party distribution agreement (to which
the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will
contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is
party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable, to:

(A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the
Closing Date has occurred until either all securities of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is notified by the winning
bidder that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the reporting obligation after the
Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the City or bond counsel.

(B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the winning
bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and

(ii) any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public,
together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member
of the selling group and each broker dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement to be employed in connection
with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution
agreement to:

(A) to promptly notify the winning bidder of any sales of Bonds that, to its knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is
arelated party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term being used as defined
below), and

(B) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer, the winning bidder shall
assume that each order submitted by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(2) Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to
the public (each term being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale.
Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

i "public" means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,
p yp party

(i1) "underwriter" means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the City (or with the lead
underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and
(B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause
(A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party
to a third-party distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public),

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a "related party" to an underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are
subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value
of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B)
more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the
value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership,
as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of
the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) "sale date" means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the City to the winning bidder.
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Bidders may obtain a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds prior to the bid opening by request from
Ehlers at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the Bond Sales link. The Syndicate Manager will be provided with an electronic
copy of the Final Official Statement within seven business days of the bid acceptance. Up to 10 printed copies of the
Final Official Statement will be provided upon request. Additional copies of the Final Official Statement will be available at a
cost of $10.00 per copy.

Information for bidders and bid forms may be obtained from Ehlers at 3060 Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville, Minnesota 55113-
1105, Telephone (651) 697-8500.

By Order of the City Council

Steven Wilke, City Manager
City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin
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BID FORM

The Common Council June 19,2019
City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin

RE: $2,385,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019B (the "Bonds")

DATED: June 27,2019

For all or none of the above Bonds, in accordance with the Notice of Sale and terms of the Global Book-Entry System (unless otherwise specified by the
Purchaser) as stated in this Official Statement, we will pay you $ (not less than $2,355,187 nor more than $2,528,100) plus accrued
interest to date of delivery for fully registered Bonds bearing interest rates and maturing in the stated years as follows:

% due 2020 % due 2027 % due 2034
% due 2021 % due 2028 % due 2035
% due 2022 % due 2029 % due 2036
% due 2023 % due 2030 % due 2037
% due 2024 % due 2031 % due 2038
% due 2025 % due 2032 % due 2039
% due 2026 % due 2033

* The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale, in increments of $5,000 each, up to a maximum of
$65,000 per maturity. Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity. If any principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted
to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000.

The rate for any maturity may not be more than 2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity. (For example, if a rate of 4.50% is proposed
for the 2025 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity is 2.50%.) All Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest from
date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate. Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.

A good faith deposit (""Deposit") in the amount of $47,700 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire transfer of funds. Such Deposit shall be received
by Ehlers no later than two hours after the bid opening time. Wire transfer instructions will be provided to the winning bidder by Ehlers after the
tabulation of bids. The City reserves the right to award the Bonds to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is initiated but not received by such time provided
that such winning bidder’s federal wire reference number has been received by such time. In the event the Deposit is not received as provided above, the City
may award the Bonds to the bidder submitting the next best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award. The Deposit will be retained by the City as liquidated
damages if the bid is accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply therewith. We agree to the conditions and duties of Ehlers and Associates, Inc., as escrow holder
of the Deposit, pursuant to the Notice of Sale. This bid is for prompt acceptance and is conditional upon delivery of said Bonds to The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York, in accordance with the Notice of Sale. Delivery is anticipated to be on or about June 27, 2019.

This bid is subject to the City’s agreement to enter into a written undertaking to provide continuing disclosure under Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as described in the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds.

We have received and reviewed the Official Statement, and any addenda thereto, and have submitted our requests for additional information or corrections to
the Final Official Statement. As Syndicate Manager, we agree to provide the City with the reoffering price of the Bonds within 24 hours of the bid acceptance.

This bid is a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds identified in the Notice of Sale, on the terms set forth in this bid form and the Notice of Sale, and is not
subject to any conditions, except as permitted by the Notice of Sale.

By submitting this bid, we confirm that we are an underwriter and have an established industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.
YES: NO: .

If the competitive sale requirements are not met, we elect to use the (circle one): 10% test / hold-the-offering-price rule to determine the issue price of the Bonds.

Account Manager: By:

Account Members:

Award will be on a true interest cost basis. According to our computations (the correct computation being controlling in the award), the total dollar interest
cost (including any discount or less any premium) computed from June 27, 2019 of the above bid is § and the true interest cost (TIC) is
%.

The foregoing offer is hereby accepted on behalf of the City of Lake Mills, Wisconsin, on June 19, 2019.

By:

Title:
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